EY Ford Rhodes UAN: +9242 111 11 39 37 (EYFR)

Chartered Accountants Tel: +9242 3577 8402-11
96-B-I, 4th Floor, Pace Mall Building Fax:+9242 3577 8412-13
M. M. Alam Road, Gulberg-II ey.lhr@pk.ey.com
P.O. Box 104, Lahore-54660 ey.com/pk

Building a better

working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
2023

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of The Pakistan Credit
Rating Agency Limited (the Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2023, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required
and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June
2023 and of the total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors' report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the unconsolidated notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) No zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980
(XVIII of 1980).
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Muhammad Ahsan Shahzad.

@HM \

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants

Lahore

Date: 09 October 2023

UDIN: AR202310079Hnf5Cr804



THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

EQOUTY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital
12,600,000 (30 June 2022: 12,600,000)
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and pald-up share capital
Accumulated profits

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term finance - secured
Deferred Government grants
Lease liabilitles

" CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long-term flnance - secured
Currenl-portion of deferred Government grants
Current-porilon of lease labilities

Shorl-term borrowings -secured

Accrued markup

Contract Hability

Provision for taxation

Trade and other payables

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use asset

+ Long term Investments
‘ Long term deposits
Deferred iaxation

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade debts - unsecured

Contract assels

Receivable from related partfes

Loan fo an associate - unsecured
Advances, prepayments & other receivables
Advance income tax

Short term invesiment

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

The anrexed noles 1 to 41 form an Integral part of these unconsolldated financlal statements.

/{;3 A {i{m{)j oAl

Chief Executlve

Page 1 of 32

Note 2023 2022
125,000,000 125,000,000
7 14,529,600 74,529,000
129,456,345 93,288,208
203,985,345 167,812,208
8 -
9 - -
10 8,156,743 7,818,341
8,156,743 7,818,341
8 - 9,282,670
9 - 102,793
10 5,924,140 6,462,098
1 - -
30,034 866,414
12 106,356,581 95,825,187
48,610,658 36,865,909
13 98,786,023 83,060,867
259,707,436 232,465,938
471,849,524 408,101,487
14
15 25,037,024 14,985,098
16 3,799,443 133,132
17 10,607,079 11,913,580
18 100,100,000 100,100,600
1,335,300 1,335,300
19 6,414,381 3,213,180
147,293,227 131,680,290
20 82,862,687 79,013,345
21 - -
22 28,537,640 21,676,828
23 30,000,000 30,000,000
24 17,494,839 16,985,466
39,847 512 33,904,599
25 44,202,019 60,727,392
26 81,611,600 34,113,567
324,556,297 276,421,197
471,849,524 408,101,487
- S
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Revenue from contracts with customers -net 27 402,617,153 316,632,521
Remuneratlon cost 28 (189,865,934) (159.351,032)
Infrastruclure cost 29 {28,457,318) (25,791,974)
Administrative cost 30 (24,973,447 {16,069,234)
(243,296,699) (201,212,240)
Operating profit 169,320,454 115,420,281
Provision for expected credit losses on frade debts 20.1 (2.469,452) (4,714,604)
Other income 31 17,926,885 19,606,692
Finance cost 32 {3,765,492) (3.092,647)
;. Profit before taxatfon 171.012,395 121,219.121
Taxation 33 {45,409,458) {36,739,224)
Proftt after taxation 125,602,937 90,480,498
Other comprehensive income for the year
Hems that may be reclassified to profit and loss In the subsequent period -
Items that will not be reclasslfied to profit and loss In the subsequent period - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 125,602,937 90,480,498
Earnings per share - basic and dliuted 16.85 12.14

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an Integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements,
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Balance as on 01 July 2021
Total comprehensive Income for the perlod

Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income

Transaction with owners

¥inal dividend for the year ending 30 June 2021 at
the rate of Rs 5 per share

Interim dividend far the year ending 30 June 2022
at the rate of Rs 6 per share

Balance as on 30 June 2022
Total comprehensive Income for the year

Profit after taxation
Addltien in surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

Transaction whth owners

FInal dividend for the year ending 30 June 2022 at
the rate of Rs 6 per share

Interim dividend for the year ending 30 June 2023
at the rate of Rs 6 per share

Bafance as on 30 June 2023

Issued, Caplial reserve || Revenue Reserve
s ibed
ubsgr Surplus on Accumulated Total
and pald-up revaluation of rofits
share capital freehold land P
------------------------------------------- RUPEES ~ e
74,529,000 84,789,610 159,318,610
- 90,480,498 90,480,498
- - 90,480,498 90,480,498
. (37,264,500} (37.264,500)
- - {44,717,400) (44,717,400)
- (81.981,900) (81,981,900}
74,529,000 - 93,288,208 167,817,208
- - 125,602,937 125,602,937
- - 125,602,937 125,602,937
- - {(44,717,400) (44,717,400)
- - (44,717,400} {44,717,400)
- - (89.434,800) (89,434,800)
74,529,000 - 129,456,345 203,985,345

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an Integral part of these unconsofidated financial statements,
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreclation on property and equipment & amortization
Depreciation on right of use asset

Finance cost

Mark-up on saving accounts

Mark-up on loan given to assoclate

Profit on short term investment

Miscellaneous Income

Shared services with PACRA Analyllcs (Pvt) Limited
Loss/(gain} on disposal of fixed assets

Unwinding of Governrent grant

Provision for expectled credit losses on trade debis

© “wking capital changes

(Increase) / decrease In current assets
- Trade debts
- Advances, Prepayments & olhers
- Contract Asset

Increase / (decrease) In current labilittes
- Trade and other payablas
- Confract liability

Cash generated from operations

Flnance cost paid
Income tax pald

Met cash generated from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assels
! ~anlo assoclates
L irtterm Investment made
fnierest recelved
Net cash (used in}/ generated from Investing activitles

Cash flow from financing activities

Long term finance paid

ease rentals paid

Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net {decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equlvalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes 110 41 form an Inlegrat part of these unconsolidated financlal statements.
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Note 2023. 2022
Rupees Rupees
171,012,395 127,219,722
6,928,373 5,635,967
17 5,303,540 5,956,790
32 3,765,492 3,092,647
3 (2,009,624) {5.062,111)
31 {6,270,061) (1,908,452)
31 (8,818,490} (2.034,455)
(128,587} (119,954}
- {(2.749,179)
283,342 {2,219,268)
31 (102,793) (783,263)
20.1 2,469,452 4,714,604
172,433,039 131,743,048
(6,094,494) 11,519,478
(6.608,029) (25.441,955)
- 2,988,905
(12,702,523) (10,933,672}
15,725,156 15,182,858
10,531,394 38,140,213
26,256,550 53,323,071
185,987,066 174,132,547
(541,370) (258,395}
(42,863,816) {33,443,887)
(A 142,581,880 140,430,265
15 (16,623,959) (8,953,439)
148,496 2,502,000
(4,491,006} -
- {30.000,000)
16,654,840 (60,727,392
16,206,552 8,361,200
(B) 11,894,923 (88,417,631}
{10,065,933) (19,562,236)
(7,478,037) {6.956,325)
{89.434,800) (81,981,500)
<) (106,978,770} (108,500,461}
(A+B+C}) 47,498,033 {66,487,827)
34,113,667 90,601,394
81,611,600 34,113,567

Director




THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

1.
T.1

1.2

1.3

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

The Pakislan Credit Raling Agency Limllted ("the Company") was Incorporated as a private limited company In Pakistan on 18 August
1994 and converted into a public Iimited company on 30 April 2004. The business of the Company Is to carry out risk evaluation of
companles and specific Insiruments. The evaluation Is expressed In terms of asslgned credit rating to the entity or the Instrument
reflecting the capaclly to honor its debt or other fixed term obligatlons. The reglstered office of the Company is sllualed at Awami
Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, New Garden Town, Lahore,

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limiled Is part of PACRA Group which consist of:

Subsidiary company % age of direct % age of effective
shareholding shareholding
PACRA Analytlcs (Private) Limited 100% 100%

Assoclated company
Tasdeeq Information Services Limited 20% 20%

The registered office of the PACRA Anaiytics (Private) Limited Is sliuated at Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, New Garden Town,
Lahore. The objectives of the Company are 1o cairy on business as management & flnancial consuitanis, rlsk managers, project
manager, trust consultants, planners, advisors, surveyors, assessors, supervisors and / or technlcal advisors of or fer any person,
company, trust, banks and financlal institutlons.

The registered office of Tasdeeq Informatlon Services Limited is situated at Building 8, Sector B, Cormmerclal Area, Phase V, DHA,
Lahore. The main oblectives of the Company are 10 carry out the business of a Credit Informatlon Company for collecting cradit
informatlon as permissibte by law refaling to deblors.

These unconsolidated financlal stalements are the separate financial statements of the Corpany in which investment In subsidiary and
Investment In assoclale are accounted for on cost basls rather than on the basis of reported resuits. Consolidated financial statements
are prepared separately.

On 26 March 2021, the Company entered Into an agreement titled *Agreement for Acqulring Shareholding' with Lanka Rating Agency
Limited (LRA) - Sri Lanka, wherein, LRA agreed to issue 26,818,772 shares (belng 16% of Iis planned Issued shares) to the Company,
without any conslderation, within 30 days of Issuance of registration certificate to LRA, by local regulator. LRA has, however, Issued
these shares In two irenches, In FY 2021 and FY 2023, respectively. The Company has the option of selling these shares back to LRA
{for Srl Lankan Rupees 2/share) after 5 years. Af the same time, the Company and LRA also entered Into an ‘Agreement for Technlcal
Affiliation’ for provislon of services by the Company; for a perlod of five (5) years, as discussed below, against annual cash
conslderation. LRA has offered these shares on lhe requirements of its local regulator.

At the inception of the above-menticned agreements, In accordance with lhe reguirements of retevant accounling standards, the
Company determined that considering the flnanclal condition of LRA, along with local economic eaviranment, restrictions atlached io
shares o be held by the Company and non-performance risk resulting from restrictions on farelgn remitlances, a reasonable estimate
of fair value of these shares (including the embedded derivative) is not expecled to be significant 1o the financial statements. Accord-
ingly, the Cempany had determined that transactien price for provision of technical services effectlvely only conslsted of cash consider-
atlons. The Company continue to reassess the falr value of these shares (Including the embedded derivative} at each reporting date.
Owing to the current financlal and economic conditions in Sri Lanka coupled with the recent soverelgn default, the Company has deler-
mined, as of reporting date, that a reasonable estimate of fair value of these shares (Including the embedded derlvative) Is not expected
to be significant to the financlat statements as a result of multiple uncertalnties and uninsurable risks which a market participant will take
into account while estimating non-performance risk relating to the LRA. The Company will continue to reassess the sltuation In Sri
Lanka and reassess lhe estimate on future reporting dates in fine with requirements of IFRS 9.

Under the Agreement for Technicat Afilliatlon, in addition to services provided for Initlal selup of LRA’s rating business, the Company is
performing agreed upon but unspecified quantity of services relating to tralning, rating audit and review. In accordance with IFRS 15
'Revenue from conlract with customers’ the Company has determined that these ongoing activitles conslst of dislinct but substantively
same servlces and thus can be classified as a single performance cbllgatlon. Further, In accordzance with practical expedient available
under para B16 of IFRS 15, the Company was entitled fo Involce and recognize revenue amouniing to US$ 212,500, As discussed
above, at Incepilon, the Company has assessed that Inflow of economlc resources from LRA wera not probable. Accordingly, the
Company had recognized revenue on recelpt basis. As of reporiing dale, owling 1o successful recelpt of remittances from LRA and Its
commitment to seftie the remalning balance as soon as possible, the Company has determined thal #t Is probable that it will fully

recover the remaining due conslderation, amounting to US$ 117,500, Accordingly, the Company has recegnized the related trade debt
(refer to note 20).

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These unconsoiidated financlal statements (hereinafter referred to as financlal statemenis’) have been prepared In accordance with the

accounting and reperling standards as appficable in Pakisian, The accaunting and reporting standards applicable In Pakistan comprise
of:

" Internatlonal Financlat Reporting Standards (IfRS Standards) Issued by the Internationat Accounting Standards Board
{IASB) as notifted under Compantes Act, 2017; and

- Provislons of and directives lssued under the Companles Act, 2017,

'
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Where provislons of and directives Issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Slandards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Compantes Act, 2017 have been followed.

Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to the published approved accounting standards

The new and amended standards and Interpretations that are Issuad, bui not yet effective, up to the dale of Issuance of the Company's
finariclal statements are disclosed below. The Caompany Intends to adopt these new and amended standards ang interpretations, i
applicable, when they become effective.

Standard
IAS 1

1AS 1 and
IFRS
Practice
Statement 2

IAS 8

IAS 12

IFRS 10
& IAS 28

Presentalion of Financial Statements te clarify how to classify debt and other liabiliffes as current or non-current,

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments io paragraphs 68 {o 76 of IAS 1 to speclfy the requirements for classifying
liabititles as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

* Whal is meant by a right to defer setiiement

* That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

* That classification Is unaffected by the iikellhood that an entity will exerclse its deferral right

* That only if an embedded derivative in a converiible liability Is itself an equity instrument would the terms of & liability not
Impact its classification.

* Only cavenants with wiich an entily Is required to comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a
liabllity as current or non-current. In addition, an enlity has to disclose information in the noles that enablss users of
financial statements to understand the risk that non-current Nabilities with covenants could become repayable within

twelve months.
The amendments are effactive for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2024 and must be applied
retrospectively. The amendments are nat expecled to have a material impact on the Company's financial siatements.

Disclosure of Accounling Policles - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - The amendments aim to help
entities provide accounting palicy disclosures that are more useful by:

- Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose
their ‘material’ accounting policies; and

- Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making declsions about accounting policy
disclosures.

The amendmenis to IAS 1 ara applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023 with earlier
application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on the
application of the definilion of material to accounting policy information, an effective dale for these amendments is not
hecessary. The Company is cureently revisiling thelr accounting poliey information disclosures to ensure consistency with
the amended requirements.

Definition of Accounting Eslimates - Amendments fo 1AS 8 - The amendments clarify the distinclion between changes in
accounling estimates and changes In accounting policles and the correction of errars. Also, they clarify how entities use
measurement lechniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beglnning on or after January 01, 2023 and appiy to changes
In accounting policles and changes in accounting estimales that oceur on or afler the start of that period. Earlier
application is parmitted as long as this fact is disclosed. The amendmentls are not expected to have a malerial impaci on
the Company's financial statements.

Beferred Tax related lo Assets and Liabilitles arising from a Single Transaclion - Amendments 1o IAS 12 - In May 2021,
the Board issued amendments to JAS 12, which narrow the scope of the initlal recognition exceplion under JAS 12, so that
it no longer applies to transactions that give rise o equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to fransactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earilest comparative period
presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earllest comparalive period presented, a deferred tax assst {provided that
sufficient taxable profit is available} and a deferred tax ltabitity should also be recognized for alf deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated wilh leases and decommissioning obligattons. The amendments are not expecled to
have a material impact on the Company's financlal statements,

Consolidated Financial Statements & Investment in Associales and Joint Verdures - Sale or Coniribution of Assets
between an Investor and Ils Associate or Joint Venture — (Amendment), The effeclive date of Amendments fo IFRS 10
and IAS 28 has been deferred indefinitely (until the research project of IASB, on the equily methed, has been concluded,
Earller application of the September 2014 amendments continues to be permitted. The Company expects that the
adoption of the amendments will have no materlal effect on the Company’s financial statements.

"“QF(
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

IFRS 16 Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments requires a seller-fessee o subsequently measure lease
liabilities arising from a [easeback in a way (hal it does not recognize any amount of tha gain or loss that refates to the
right of use it retains. The new requirements do not prevent a seller-lesses from recognizing in profit or loss any gain of
loss relating 1o the partial or full termination of a lease. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2024. A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with 1AS 8
Accounting Policfes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after
the date of inilial application,

in addition te the above, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SEGP for the
purpose of applicability in Pakistan:
{Annual periods

Standard beginning on or after)
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Interational Financial Reporting Standards 01 January 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023

The above amendments and interpretations are not expected to have any significant impact on financlal statements of the Company.

CHANGES IN AGCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES RESULTING FROM AMENDMENTS IN STANDARDS DURING THE
YEAR

Fhe accounting policies adopled in the preparation of these financiat statements are consistent with those of the previous financial year,
excopt for following amendments fo accounting standards which are effective far annual periods beginning on or after July 01, 2022
(unless otherwise stated). The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has baen Issued
butis not yet effectiva:

{FRS 03 Business Combinations — The amendment updates a reference In IFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting without changing the accounting requirements for business combinations.

The amendments add an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 Business Combinations to avoid the Issue of
potentlal “day 2' gains or losses arising for fiabilities and contingent liabllities that would be within the scope of 1AS 37
Provistons, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately. The exception requires
entities to apply the criteria in 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of the Conceptual Framework, to determine
whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition date. The amendments also add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. In accordance with the transitionat
provisions, the Company applies the amendments prospectively, i.e,, to business combinations occurring after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments {the date of initlal application).

These amendments had no impact on the separate financial statements of the Cempany.

{AS 16 Property, plant and equipment — Amendment fo clarify the prohibiticn on an enfity from deduciing from the cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it io be capable of operating in the manner inlended by management. Instead, an enfity
recognizes the proceeds from selling such iterns, and the cost of preducing those items, in profit or loss.

In accordance with the transitionat provisions, the Company applies the amendments retrospectively only to items of
PPE made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest perlod presented when the entity first applies the
amendiment {the date of initial application). These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the
Company as there were no sales of such items preduced by property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beglnning of the earliest period presented.

1AS 37 Provistons, Conlingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Amendments to specify that when assessing whether a
contract is onerous or loss-making, an entlty needs fo Include costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or
services Including both incremental costs {e.g., the costs of direct labor and materials) and an allocation of costs directly
related to coniract activities {e.g., depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract and costs of conlract management
and suparvision), General and administrative costs do not relate directly fo a coniract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The Company applied the amendments to the contracts for
which It had not fulfilted all of its obfigations at the beginning of the reporting pericd, These amendments had no impact on
the financial statements of the Corapany, as prior to the application of the amendments, the Company had not Identified
any contracls as belng onerous and the unavoldable costs under the sontracts, which were the costs of fulfiling them,

comprisad of Incremental cosls direclly related 1o the contracts and an allocation of costs directly related to contract
aclivities,

The adoption of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any material effect on the financial statement,

In addition to the above amendments to standards, improvements to various accounting standards (under the annuat improvements
2018 - 2020 cycle) have also been issued by the IASB in May 2020. Such improvements were generally effective for accounting
perlods beginning on or after July 01, 2022:

£
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IFRS 9 Financial instruments: Fees in the 10 per cent' test for derecognilion of financial liabilities - The amendment clarifies the
fees that an entily Includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financia lability are substantiaily
different from the terms of the original financial ltability. These fees include only lhose paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees paid or recsived by either the borrower or tender on the other's behalf, There is no
simifar amendment proposed for [AS 30,

In accordance with the lransitional provisions, the Company applies the amendment to financial liabilittes that are
maodified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annua reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment (the date of iniial application). These amendments had no Impact on the financial statements of the
Company as there were no modifications of the Company's financial instruments during the pericd.

IFRS 16 Leases: Lease incentives — The amendment removes the illustration of payments frem the lessor relaling to leasehold
improvements In llustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 18 and had no Impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IAS 41 Agriculture: Taxation In fair value measurements — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of 1AS 41
that entitles exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of assets wilhin the scope of JAS 41,

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it did not have assets in scopa of IAS
41 as at the reporting date.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Basls of measurement

These unconsolidated financlal statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise stated,
Presentatlon currency

These unconsaolldated financiat statements are presented In Pak Rupee, which Is the Company's functicnal and presentation cureency.
Flgures have been rounded off to the neares! rupee, unless otherwise stated.

SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparatlon of financial statements in conformily with approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires the use of
certaln critical accounting estimates. Il also requires management to exerclse iis judgment in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies, Estimates and Judgments are continually evaluated and are based on the hislorical experience, Including
expectations of future events that are belleved fo be reasonable under the clreumstances, These eslimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongolng basls. Revislons to accounting eslimates are recognized In the perlod in which the estimale Is
revised If the revislen affects only that perlod or in the period of the revisien and fulure perlods if the revislon affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements
There Is no significant Judgement involved In the preparatlon of these unconsolidaled financial statements.
Significant estimates and assumptions

Estimates with respect lo depreclable lives, residual values and pattern of flow of economic benefils are based on the analysis of the
management of the Company. Further the Company reviews the value of the assels for possibte impairment on an annual basls. Any
change In the eslimates In the fulure might affect fhe carrying amount of respective ltem of properly and equipment, with a
corresponding effect on the depreciation charge.

Expected credlt loss / loss allowances against rade deblts, and other receivables (as explained In note 6,12)

ECLs are based on the difference between the contraciual cash flows due In accordance with the coniract and all the cash flows that
the Company expects 1o receive. The shortfalt Is then discounted at an approximalion to the assets’ originat effective Interest rate.

The Company has elecled to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and has catculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Company has establishad a provision matrix that is based on the Company's historical credii loss
experlence, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economlc envirorment. When determining whether the
credit risk of a financlal asset has increased slgnificantly since Inftial recegnition and when estimating ECLs, the Company conslders
reasonable and supportable Informallon that is relevant and available withaut undue cost or effort. This Includes both quantitative and
qualitatlve Infermation and analysis, based on the Company's historlcal experience and Informed credit assessment Including forward-
looking Information.

The maximum perlod considered when estimaling ECLs is the maximum contracival perlod over which the Company Is exposed to
credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assets measured al amortised cost are deducted from ihe gross carrylng amount of the
assels.

Impatrment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expecled loss basis and reflects the short maluritles of
the exposures,

The Company reviews Iis Irade recelvables at each reporting date fo assess whether provision should be recorded in the statement of
profit or loss. In particular, Judgment by management is requlred In the estimalion of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining the level of provislon regulred. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and aclual results
may differ, resuliing in future changes o the provisions.

"'qsl
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5.4 Taxation

The Company takes Inte account the current income tax law and decislons taken by the {axation authorities. Instances where the
Company's views differ from the views taken by the Income tax department at the assessment stage and where ihe Company
considers that Its view on ltems of material nature is In accordance with law, the amounts are shown as conlingent fabilities (Note:14)

& SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted In the preparation of these unconsalidated financial statements are consistent with those of the
previous year except as described in Note 3.

6.1 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
6.1.1  Revenue Recognition

Revenue Is recognized when services are rendered to the customer, in an amourd that reflects the consideration the Company expecls
lo be enllled to those services excluding sales tax and after deduction of discounts, Specific revenue and other income recagnition
policles are as foliows:

6.1.1.1 Feelncome

a) Rating

Revenue from rating services Is recognized at paint in time when services are rendered 1o the customer

b) Monitoring

Revenue atiributed o monilaring Is recognized over the perled fn which monltoring Is performed, generally one year.
' é.‘i.2 Blvidends

Dividend ncome is recognized when the Company’s right 1o recelve payment Is established.
6.1.3  Interest Income

Interest Income s recognlsed as it accrues under the effective Interest method.
6.2 Leases

The Company assesses at centracl Inception whether a contract Js, or contalns, a lease. That is, If the contraci conveys the right to
control the use of an Identified asset for a period of Hme In exchange for consideration.

Company as lessee

The Company apptles a single recognltlon and measurement approach for ail leases, except for shorl-term leases and leases of low-
value assels. The Company reccgnizes iease Habllitles to make |ease payments and right-of-use assels representing the right 1o use
the underlying assets,

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assels al the commencement data of the lease {i.e., the date the underlying asset is avallable for
use). Right-of-Use assels are measured al cost, less any accumulated depreciation, impairment losses, and adjusled for any
remeasurement of lease llabliitles. The cost of right-of-use assets Includes the amount of lease liabifittes recognized and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives recelved. Right-of-use assels arc depreciated on a
stralght-line basts over the shorter of the tease term and the estimated useful lives of he assets,

Lease liabliltles - rented premises

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease flabllilles measured af the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments Include fixed payments (Including In-substance fixed payments) less any lease
Incentives receivable, varlable lease payments that depend on an Index or a rale, and amounis expected lo be paid under reslduat
value guarantees. The fease payments also Include the exerclse price of a purchase optlon reasonably certaln to be exerclsed by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, If the lease lerm reflects the Company exerclslng the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an Index or a rate are recognized as expenses (untess they are incurred to
praduce Inventorles) In the perlod In which the event or candition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental bosrowing rale at the lease commencemenl date
because the Interest rate implicit In the lease Is not readliy determinable. After the commencement dale, the amount of [ease llabilitles
Is increased to reflect the accrellon of Interest and reduced for the Jease paymenis made.

In addition, the carrylng amount of fease Habilitles Is remeasured If there is a modificatlon, a change In the lease term, a change In the
lease payments (e.g., changes fo future payments resulting from a change In an Index or rate used to determine such fease payments)
or a change In the assessment of an option to purchase tha underlying asset,

e
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Property and equipment

items of property and equipment other than freehold land are stated at cost less accumuiated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. Freehold Tand is slated at revalued amount belng the falr value at the date of revaluation less subseqguent Impalement losses, if
any. Cost comprises purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deciucting trade discounts and
rebates and includes other costs directly allributable to the acquisition or construction including expenditures on material, tabor and
overheads directly relating to construction, erection and Installatlon of properly and equipment.

tand Is recognlzed al rovalued amount based on valuallon by exlernal independent valuer. A revaluatlon surplus credited to other
reserves {caplial reserves) In shareholders’ equity and presented as separate line item In statement of financial position.

Increases In the carrylng amaunts arising on revaluation of fand was recagnized, In olher comprehensive Incame and accumulated in
reserves In shareholders’ equity. As at year end, the Company does not have any freehold land.

Capltal work-In-progress Is stated at cost less Identifled Impalrment losses, If any. Alt expenditure connected with speclfic assets
incurred during Instatfation and construction period are carried under capital work-In-progress, These are transferred to specific assets
as and when these are avallable for use,

All other repalrs and maintenance are charged to expense during the perlod in which these are Incurred,

Depreciation charged on all property and equipment except freehold fand, is based on the stralght line method se as to wrile off the
historlcal cost of an assel over its estlmated useful life at rales mentioned in nole 15 after taklng Into account their resldual values.
Deprectation on additions Is charged from the month in which these are capitalized, while no depreclation is charged in the month In
which an assel Is disposed off,

An llem of properly and equipment Is derecognized upon disposal or when no fulure econcimic benefits are expecied from ts use or
disposal. Gains and fosses on sale of an ltem of property, plant and equlpment are determinad by comparing the proceeds from sale
with the carrylng amount of property, pfant and equipment, and are recognized In staterent of comprehensive income.

Intangible

Infangible asset is slated at cost less accumulated amortization for finite intangible assel and any idendifled Impalrment loss. The
estimated useful fife and amortizallon method Is revlewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with effect of any changes In
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basts,

Finlte Intanglole assets are amorllzed using straight-tine methad at rates mentloned [n note 16 to lhese unconsolidated financial
statements. Amortization an additlons (o intangible assets is charged from the month in which an asset is put 1o use and on disposaf up
to the month of disposal,

Stock In trade

Stocks are valued at lower of cost and net reallzable value. Cost Is determined on the basls of weighted average method. Nel realizable
value Is arrived at by considering the technical obsolescence of stocks and the replacement cost thereof in the ordinary course of
business.

Goods in transit are valued at cost comprising Involce vatue plus other charges Incurred thereon.
Taxation

ncome lax comprlses current and deferred tax. Income tax Is recognized In statement of comprehenslve Income except 1o the extent
that It refates fo ltems recognized directly In other comprehensive Income or eqully, In which case It is recognized in other
comprehenslve Income or equity, as the case may be.

Current

The charge for current taxation ls based on taxable Income for the year al the current rales of taxation after taking Into account
applicable tax credils and lax rebales, if any. The charge for the current tax also Includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to
provision for 1ax made in previous years arlsing from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

The Company accounts for deferred taxation, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences arlsing on differences
between carrying amounts of assets and llabilities in the unconsolidaled financlal slatements and their corresponding tax bases,
Deferred tax liabilltles are recognlzed for ail taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assels are recognlzed 1o the exient that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available agalnst which the deductible temporary differences, unused 1ax losses and tax credils
can be ulilized. Deferred tax Is calcufated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on
lax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Forelgn currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencles are transiated to the respactive functional currencles of the Company at exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and llabiflties denominated in forejgn currencles at the feporting date are refranslated to the
functionat currency at the exchange rate at that date. The forelgn currency galn or loss on monetary items Is the difference betwaen
amertized cost in the funclional currency at the beglnning of the year, adjusted for effecilve Interest and payments during the year, and
the amortized cost In forelgn currency iranslated at the exchange rale at the end of the year,
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Non-monetary assets and liabilitles that are measured at fair value in a forelgn currency are relranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate al the date that the falr value was determined. Non-monetary flems that are measured based on historical cost in a
forelgn currency are not translated.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in stalement of profil or loss.
Offsetting of flnanclal assets and firranciat Habilities

A financial assel and financlal llabilily are offset and the net amount is reporied In the balance sheet if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and Intends either to settfe on net basls or to reallze the assels and settle the
liabiiitles simultaneousty.

Provision

A provislon is recognized In the statement of financlal position when he Company has a legal ar constructive obllgatlon as a result of a
past event, and it is probable thai an oulflow of economic benefits will be required 1o setlle lhe obligation and a rellable estimale can be
made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required to seftle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. However, provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect current best estimates.

Casit and cash equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carrled in the balance sheet at cost, For the purpose of cash flow statemenl, cash and cash equivalents
comprise of cash and bank balances and short term running finance.

Trade and other payable

Trade and other payables are recognized Inltlally at falr vajue plus directly atlributable cosl, if any angd subsequently measured at
amortized cost,

Contract Balances
Contract Asset

A contract assel Is the right to considerallon for rendering of sesvices if the Company performs by providing services to customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment Is due, a coniract asset Is recognized for the earned consideration that s
conditional.

Contract Liabllity

A contract liability is the obligation to render services to a customer for which he Company has received consideralion (or an amount
of consideration Is due} from the customer. If a customer pays consideration hefore the Company render servicas to the customer, a
contract flabiiity is yecognized when the payment Is made or the payment Is due (whichever Is earller). Contract labliitles are
recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Financlal instruments - initlal recognition and subsequent measurement

A financlal instrument Is any contract that gives rlse to a financial asse! of ohe entlty and a financial liability or equlty instrument of
another entity.

Financlal assets
Financial assets - Initial recognition

Financlal assets are classified, at Initlal recogniton, and subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (CCY), and fair value through profit or loss.

The chassification of financlal assets at Initial recognition depends on the financlal asset's contractual cash fiow characleristics and the
Company's business model for managing them, With the exception of trade debls and bank balance that do no! contaln a significant
financing compenent or for which the Company has applled the practical expedient, the Company Initlalty measures a financial asset at
its falr value plus, In the case of a financlal asset not at fair value through profit or foss, lransaction costs. Trade debis that do not
contaln a significant financing component or for which the Company has applled the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15. Refer lo lhe accounting pollcy in Revenue from contracts with customers.

tn order for a financlal assel fo be classified and measured at amorlized cost or fair value through OC, It needs to give rise to cash
flows that are 'solely payments of princlpal and interest (SPPI) an the principal amount outstanding.

This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an Instrument lavel.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how [t manages its financlal assets In order o generate cash
tlows. The business mode! determines whether cash flows will resull from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financlal assets,
or both,

Purchases or sales of financtal assets that require delivery of assets within a ime frame established by regulation or convention In the

markel place {regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commils to purchase or selt the
asset,

The Company's financlal assets include long-term deposits, trade debts, loans to associales, shart term Investment, other receivables
and bank balances,

=y
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Financlal assets - subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequen! measurement, financial assels are classified In four categories:

Financlal assets al falr value through profit or foss
Financial assets al amertized cos! {debt Instruments)

Financial assels designaled at falr value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and fosses upon derecognition {equity
Instruments)

Flnancial assets at fair value through OCI with recyeling of cumufative galns and fesses (debl instruments)

Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or [oss include financlal assels held for lrading, financial assels designated upon initial
recogunition af fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily requlred to be measured at fair value. Financlal assets are
classified as held for trading if hey are acquired for the purpose of selfing or repurchasing In the near term. Derlvatives, Including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designaled as effeclive hedging Instruments.
FInancial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of princlpal and interest are classified and measured at falr value through
profit or foss, Iirespective of ihe business medel. Noiwithsianding the crlieria for debt Instruments 1o be classifled at amortized cost or
at fair value through OCI, as described above, deb! Instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on Initial
recognition if dolng so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mlsmatch,

Financlal assels al fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at falr value with nel changes in fair
value recognlized In the statement of profit or loss,

This category includes derlvative Instruments and listed eqully Invesiments which the Company had not irrevocably elected 1o classify
at fair value through OCH Dividends on listed equity lavesiments are alsa recognized as other Income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been establlshed.

A derivalive embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial ifability or non-financial host, Is separated from the host and accounted for
as 4 separale derivalive if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely refaied to the hosk: a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivalive would meet the definition of a derivative: and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivalives are measured at falr value with changes In fair value recognized In profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs If There is either a change In the lerms of the contract that slgnificantly modifles the cash flows that woutd
otherwise be required or a rectasskitcation of a financial asset oul of the fair value through profit or loss calegory.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid coniract contalning a financlal assel host Is not accounied for separalely. The financial asset
host together with the embedded derlvative is required to be classifted In its entirety as & financlal asset at fair value through prefit or
loss.

The Company does rot have financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial asseis at amartized cost (debt Instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Company, The Company measures financial assels at amortized cost if both of the following
cenditions are met;

* The financtat asset is held within a business medel with the objective {o hold financlal assels In order to collect contraciual cash flows;
and

- The contraclual terms of the financial asset give rise on specilled dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principat and interest
on the principal amount outstanding

Financtal assets at amortized cost are subsequenlly measured using the effective interest (EIR} method and are subject 1o impalrment.
Gains and losses are recognized In profit or loss when the asset |s derecognized, modified or Impaired.

The Company's financlal assets at amorlized costs includes trade debts and other recelvables,

FInancial assets deslgnated al fair value through OCI with ne recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition

Upsn Initfal recognition, the Company can elect to classify Irrevocably Hts equity investments as equity Instruments designated at falr
value through OC!I when they meet the definition of equity under [IAS 32 Financlal instruments: Preseriation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an Instrument-by-instrument basls.

Galns and losses on these financlal assets are never recycled lo profit or loss. Dividends are recagnized as other income In the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been eslablished, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such galns are recorded in OCI. Equily instruments designated af fair
value through OCl are not subject to Impalrment assessment.

The Company does not have any financial assels designated at falr value through OCI {eqully Instruments).
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Flnancial assels at falr value through OC| with recycling of cumulative galns and losses {debt Instruments)
The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through OCIf both of the foltowing conditions are met:
* The financlal assel Is held within 2 business modef with the objective of boih holding te colfect contraclual cash flows and selllng; and

- The contractual terms of the financlal asset glve rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments of princlpal and Interest
on the principal amount outstanding

For debt Instruments at fair value through OC), Interest Income, foreign exchange revaluation and impalrment losses or roversals are
recognized in the statement of profil or loss and computed In the same manner as for financial assets measured at amartized cost. The
remalning falr value changes are recognized in OCI. Upen derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognized In OC) is
recycled to profit or oss.

The Company does not have debt Instruments recorded at falr value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses.
Financlal assets - Derecognition

A financlal asset (or, where applicable a pant of a financlal asset or part of a Company of simifar financiat assets) is primarlly
derecognlzed when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

* The Company has transferred its rights lo recelve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an cbligation 1o pay the received cash
flows In full without materiat delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and elther (a) the Campany has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor relained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the assel, bui has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred is rights to receive cash flows from an assel or has entered Into & pass-through arrangement, |t
evaluates if, and to what exteny, it has retalned the risks and rewards of ownership. When R has neither transferred nor retained
substantlally all the risks and rewards of the assel nor transferred contral of the assel, the asset is recognized to the exient of the
Company's conlinuing Invalvement In the asset. In Ihat case, the Company also reccgnizes an associated Hability. The translerred
asset and the assoclated llabilily are measured on a basls thaf reflecls the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing Involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred assel, Is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maxIraum amount of cons!deration that the Company could be required t6 repay.

Financiaf assets - Impairment

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credil losses ("ECL") for alf debt Inslruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the conlractual cash flows due in accordance with the conlract and all the cash
flows that the Company expecis to recelve. The shorifall fs then discounted at an approximation to the asset's origlnal effective Interest
rate.

ECLs are recognized in two stages, For credit exposures for which there has not been a sfgnificant Increase In credit risk since Initlal
recagnitlon, ECLs are provided for credil [osses that resull fram default events that are possible within the next 12-months {a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a slgnificant increase in credit risk since Initial recognltion, a loss allowance
is required for credit lnsses expacted over the remalning ife of the exposure, Irrespective of the timing of the default (a fifetime ECL).

The Company considers a financlal asset In default when contractual payments are 30 days past due. However, In cerlain cases, the
Cempany may also conslder a financlal assel to be in default when Internal or external information Indicates that the Company Is
unfikely 1o receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking Inlo account any credit enhancements held by the
Company. A financlal asset Is wrilten off when there Is no reasonabie expectatlon of recovering the contractual cash flows.

For trade debls, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on fifetime expected credit losses, The
Company has esiablished a provislon matrix that Is based on the Company's historical credlt loss experlence, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environmment. The expacted credlt losses are recognized In the statement of
profit or foss. The lmpact of ECL on trade debis Is disclosed In nole 16.

For bank balances, the Company applies a simplified approach In calculating ECLs based on lifetime expecled credit losses, The
Company reviews Internal and external information avallable for each bank balance to assess expected credit toss and the likefihood to
recelve the outstanding contractual amount. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of proft or loss howaver, the
lmpact of ECL on bank balances [s immaterlai,

“"QFE

Page 13 of 32




THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

613 Financlaf liabilities
Financial liabilitles - inltial recognition
Firanclal liabilitles are classifted, at inltiat recognition, as financlal liabilitles at fair value thraugh profit or loss, loans and borrowings,

payables, or as derivalives deslgnated as hedging instruments In an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Alt financlal llabilitles are recognized Initially at falr vaiue and, In the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable fransaction cosls,

The Company's financial liabilitles Include long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up arrangements, creditors,
liabilittes agalnst assels subject 1o finance fease, accrued and other liabilitics.

Flnanctal liabliltles - subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognitlon, interest-bearing loans and berrowings are subsequently measured al amortized cost using the EIR method,

Gains and losses are recognized In profit or loss when the liabllities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premlum on acquisiion and fees or costs that are an Integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization Is Included as finance costs in the statement of comprehenslve Income,

This category applles to long term loans, short term borrowings ulilized under mark-up arrangements, creditors, liabllities agalnst
assels subject 1o finance lease, accrued and other liabilitles.

Financlal Habilities - derecognition

A financtat Ylabllity Is derecognized when the obligation under the fiabllity Is discharged, cancelled or expires.

When an existing financlal llabllity Is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
exlsting liability are substanllally medified, such ap exchange or modification Is Ireated as a derecegnition of the original fabllity and the
recegnition of a new liabllity, and the difference In the respeclive carrylng amounts Is recognized iIn the stalement of profit or loss.

6.14 Employee benefits

Defined contribution pian

The Company operated a defined contributory approved Provident Fund Trust for all its employees. Equal monthly contributions are
made both by the Company and employees at the rate of 5% {2022: 5%} of the basic salary to the Provident Fund Trust. Obllgation for
contributlons to defined contribution plan Is expensed as the related service Is provided.

6.15 Contingent liabllities
A contingent Ifability Is disclosed when:

I} there s a possible abligatlon that arises from past events and whose existence wilt be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertaln fulure events not wholly within the contro? of the Company: or

i} there Is present obligation that arises from past evenls bul i is not probable that an outfiow of resources embodying ecoenomic
benefits will be required 1o sellle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

616 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) Is calculated by dividing the profit or loss atiributable 1o ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
welghled average number of ordinary shares autstanding during the year.

Diluled EPS Is calculated by adjusting baslc EPS by the welghted average number of ordinary shares that would be Issued on
conversion of all difutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes In profit and loss attrlbutable 1o
ordinary shareholders of the Company thal would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares Inlo ordinary shares,

6.17 Government grant

Government grants are recognized when there Is reasonable assurance that the grant will ke recelved and alf attached condillons shall
be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense iem, It Is recognized as Income on systematic basis aver the perfeds that the
related costs, for which it Is intended to cempensale, are expensed. When the grant relates lo an assel, [t Is recognized as income In
equal amaunts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When a grant refaled to non menetary asset Is recelved, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominat amounts and released to
stalement of profil or loss over lhe expecled useful life of the assel, based on the pattern of consumplion of the benefils of the
underlying assef by equal annual instalments.

i
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6.19

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Mark-up bearing borrowings

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognlzed Inltially at cost representing the fair value of consideration received less atlributable
{ransaction costs. Subsequent to Initlal recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated al original cost less subsequent
repaymerds, while the difference between the originai recognized amounis {as reduced by periodic payments) and redemption value s
recognized fn the profit and loss account over the period of borrowlngs on an effective rate basis, The borrowing cost on qualifying
asset s included In the cost of related asset,

Long term lnvestments
investment [n subsldiary

Inveslment in subsidiary companies are measured al cost as per the requirements of 1AS-27 *Separate Financial Stalements'. However,
at subsequent reporling dates, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of the lwesiments and its recoverablllty 10 determine
whether there Is an indication lhat such Investments have suffered an impalrment loss. If such indicaticn exists the carrying amounts of
the Investments are adiusted 1o the extent of impalrment loss. Impalrment losses are recognized as an expense In profli and foss
acceunt.

Investments In equity Instruments of assoclates

Assaclates are enlitles over which the Company has significant influence but not control. Invesiments in equity Instruments of assoclate
Is measured af cost less impairment, If any, In the Company's separale financial statements.

’5(152

Page 15 of 32




7.1

7.2
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022 2023 2022
(Number of shares) Rupees Rupees
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each aliocated
for consideration pald in cash 1,500,000 1,600,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
Ordlnary shares of Rs 10 each issued as
bonus shares 5,952,900 5,552,900 59,529,600 59,529,000
7,452,900 1,452,900 74,529 000 74,529,000

LSE Financial Services Limited, an assoclated undertaking holds 2,683,042 (2022: 2,683,042) ordinary shares comprising
36% of the paid up share capilal of the Company.

Directors hold 4,024,568 (2022: 3,763,718) ordlnary shares comprising 54% of total pald up share capital of the Company.

Note 2023 2022

LONG-TERM FINANCE - SECURED Rupees Rupees
Bank AL Habib Limited 8.1 - -
Balance as at 07 July 10,065,933 29,628,170
Recelpts during the year - -
Repayments during the year (10.065,933) (20,345,500)
Accrued markup - 783,263

- 10,065,933
Accrued markup shown as current lability - (783,263)
Less: Current portion of long-term finance - (9.282,670)

Balance as at 30 June -

The Company obtained long term finance facllity from Bank AL Habib Limited under State Bank of Pakistan refinance
scheme for payment of wages and salaries of workers and employees for the month of April 2020 to June 2020. The
facility is repayable In elght equal quarterly instaliments, payable quarterly In arrears, commenclng afler a grace perlod of
9 months and it carries markup af the rate of 3% per annum. This facillty is secured by way of first hypothecation over all
current and fulure current assels of the Company for Rs. 86 million and furniture & fixtures of the Company for Rs. 10
milion. Being a loan below market rale of Inleresl, a portion of the loan has been treated as Government grant as
described In nole 9.

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT

This represents deferred grant recognized on loan received from Bank AL Habib Limited at below market interest rate
under SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salarles of Workers and Employees.

Movement during the vear Is as follows: Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Balance as at 01 July 102,793 886,056
Amount recognized as deferred grant during the year (102,793) -
Amount recognized as income during the year . (783,263)
- 102,793
Less: Current portion of deferred government grant - {102,793}

Balance as at 30 June - -
LEASE LIABILITY

The effective Interest rate used as the discounting factor (i.e. Incremental borrowing rate) Is 22.96%. The amount of fulure
payments and the period during which they wilt become due are:

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Period ending 30 June
2022 - -
2023 - 7,478,049
2024 8,038,884 8,038,903
2025 ‘ 8,641,797 -
16,680,681 15,616,952
Less: fulure finance charges (2,599,798) (1,236,513}
14,080,883 14,280,439
Less: current maturity shown under current liablities (5,924,140} {6,462,098)
"?‘qﬂ 8,156,743 7,818,341

Page 16 of 32




THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

10,1 Maximum fease term for the exIsting lease contracts is up to 4 years.

10.2  Minimum Lease Payments (MLP} and thelr Present Value (PV) are as follow:

MLP PV of MLP
(Rupees) {Rupees)
Bue not later than 1 year 8,038,884 6,426,869
Due later than 1 year but not fater than 5 years 8,641,797 5,769,350
16,680,681 12,196,219

10.3  Setout below are the carrylng amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:

Note 2023 2022

Rupees Rupees
Balances as at 01 July 14,280,439 16,561,848
Impact of reassessment of lease 3,997,039 .
Markup on lease liabllitles 3,281,442 1,674,916

21,558,920 21,236,764
Less: Lease renlals pald {7,478,037) {6.956,325)
Balance as at 30 June 14,080,883 14,280,439

} SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED

This represents utllized balance of running finance facllity obtained from Bank AL Hablb Limited against limit of Rs.30
mitlion (2022: Rs 30 milllon). This facllity carrles markup at the rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 150 basis points per annum
(2022: 3 month Kibor plus 150 basis points per annum), payable quarterly. This is secured by way of first hypothecation
charge of Rs. 85 million and Rs. 10 mlliion on present and future current assets and furniture & flxtures of the Company
respectively.

Note 2023 2022
12 CONTRACT LIABILITY Rupees Rupees
Advance from customers 121 30,984,020 21,369,776
Deferred revenue 12.2 75,372,561 68,456,411
106,356,681 95,825,187

12,1 This represents advance recelved from customers for future raling of entities.
12,2 This represents deferred revenue relating to services recognized over time.

123 Revenue recognized in the reporiing period that was included in the contract liahilitles balance at the beginning of the
period amounts to Rs. 60.75 million {2022: Rs. 57.68 miflion).

Note 2023 2022

1 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Rupees Rupees
' Remuneration and related cost payable 43,790,072 41,101,851
Infrastructure and related cost payables 490,568 660,800
Administeative and related cost payable 6,237,016 2,989,058
Due to related parties 131 28,706,685 25,185,404
Sales tax payable 19,561,682 13,123,755
98,786,023 83,060,867

13.1  Payable fo related parties include:

PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited (a subsldiary) 13.1.1 27,681,277 24,866,667
Tasdeeq Information Services Limited (an assoclate) 13.1.2 1,025,408 318,737
28,706,685 25,185,404

13.1.1 This represents advance received from PACRA Anaiytics {Private) Limited which Is to be adjusted agalnst expense
incurred on behalf of the Company.

13.1.2 This represents net payabla balance to Tasdeeq Informallon Services Limited which Is to be adjusted agalnst expense
incurred on behalf of the Company,

"‘qﬂ
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14.2.4

14.25

14.2.6
2.7

14.2.8

14.2.9

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Commiments

JS Bank Limiied has issued performance guarantee on behalf of the Company in favour of Finance Department of
Government of Punjab amounting to Rs. 0.05 million {2022: Rs. 0.05 million),

Contingencies

The Commissioner Inland Revenue (the “CIR") issued order dated 02-Sep-2021 under seclion 161(1) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the “Ordinance”) for the tax year 204 and 2017 to remand back notice for
reassesment, The management expects a favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissloner Inland Revenue (the “DCIR") issued order dated May 31, 2021 under section 122(1) of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the “Ordinance”) for the tax year 2015 whereby tax amounting to Rs. 10.1 million
on account of disallowance of expenses was levled. The Company preferred an appeal on June 18, 2021 before
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the “CIR(A)"], which is pending adjudication. The management expecis a
favourable outcome in this regard,

The Depuly Commissioner Inland Revenue (the “DCIR") issued order dated February 22, 2019 under sectlon 161{1)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the *Ordinance”} for the tax year 2016 whereby lax amounting to Rs. 2.2
mitlion for non-deduction of withholding tax was levied. The Company preferred an appeal before Commissioner
Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the “CIR(A)“], which Is decided against the Company by confirming the tax liability of Rs.
0.59 miltion. Being aggrieved, the Company flled an appeal on Seplember 16, 2021 before the Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (the “*ATIR"), which is pending adjudication. The management expecis a favourable outcome in this
regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Intand Revenue {the "DCIR") issued show cause notice dated January 26, 2021 under
section 161 (1A) of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001 (“the Ordinance") for the tax year 2018 for non-deduction of
withholding tax on expenses and purchases. In compliance to this notes, a reply by the Cornpany has duly been
submitied dated February 17, 2021 which is stilf under process. The management expects a favourable oulcome in
this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Infand Revenue {the "DCIR" issued show cause notice dated January 27, 2021 under
section 161 {1A) of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001 (“the Ordinance") for the tax year 2019 and tax year 2020 for
non-deduction of withholding tax on expenses and purchases. No correspondence has been made In respect of
these notices. Since assessing officer was transferred and notices from new officers are still not recelved. The
management expects a favourable outcome in this regard.

The DCIR issued a notice under seclion 4-C for the year 2022 for recovery of super tax on July, 11 2023 . Reply
has been submitted and the case Is pending with tax officlals.

Appeal against an order has been filed with CIR {Appeals) to rectify mistake for the year 2017 under section 221 {1
- Demand of Rs 2.2 m has been rasied against the same.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the "DCIR") issued show cause notice dated February 19, 2022 under
seclion 161(1A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 {the “Ordinance”) for the tax year 2021 for non-deduction of
withholding tax on expenses and purchases. In compliance to this notice, a reply has duly been submitted dated
March 30, 2022 which Is still under process. The management expects a favourable outcome in this regard.

The Assistant Commissloner Sind Revenue Board {the "ACSR") Issued show cause nolice dated Oclober 21, 2021
under section 3 & 8 of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act 2011 {the " Act") for the tax period 2017,2018,2019 &
2020 for revenue difference In SRB sales tax returns and PACRA Audited Accounis for abovementioned periods
and sales tax amounting Rs. 38.02 million was levied. In comphance to this notice, the assessing offlcer passed
judgement on dated July 02, 2022 and lax assessed by Rs. 831,949 and Imposed penalty by Rs. 41,594. Against

such order an appeal Is flled before the worlhily Commissioner Appeals. The management expecis a favourable
outcome in this regard.

ﬂ,,QR
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15

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

COST
Additions
As at .
01 July 2022 during the B
year

------------------------ Re
Owned

Furniture and fixtures 17,162,120 9,550,130 4

Office equipment and computers 17,574,984

7,073,829 7

Vehicles 4,292,209
39,029,313 16,623,959 12
COST
As at Additions
01 Juiy 2021 during the Dis
year
--------------------- Rupees
Owned
Furnilure and fixlures 14,309,631 2,852,489
Office equipmant and compulers 16,358,579 1,951,150
Vehicles 2,399,409 4,149,800 2%
33,067,619 8,953,439 25

Bepreciation charge Is allocated as follows:

Infrastructure cost

"‘qﬂi




6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

COSs1
As at Additions
01 July during the
2022 year
-------------------- Rupees
Windows and MS office software 343,000 -
Ratlng software - License 4,491,006
Accounting software 1,031,074 -
1,374,074 4,491,006
COST
As al Additlons {
07 July during the d
2021 year
-------------------- Rupees
Windows and MS offlce software 343,600 -
Acecounting software 1.031,074 -
1,374,074

6.1 Amortization charge has been alfocated as follows:;

Infrastruciure cost

"
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

2023 2022
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET Rupees Rupees
Batances as at 01 July 11,913,580 11,870,370
Impact of reassessment of lease 3,997,039 -
Less: depreciation {5.303,540) {5.956,790)
Balance as at 30 June 10,607,079 11,913,580

This includes 1 leasehold buildings having 2 floors siuated at Awaml Comptex, FB-1, Usman Block, Garden Town, Lahore.

Nole 2023 2022
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS Rupees Rupees
invesiment In subsldlary 181 100,000 100,000
Investment In asseciate 18.2 100,000,000 100,000,600
100,100,000 100,100,000

This represents investment in PACRA Analytics (Private) Limiled, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated In
Pakistan. The Company owns 10,000 (2022: 10,000} fully pald ordinary shares at the rate of Rs 10 each. The registered office
of the subsidiary is sltualed at Awami Complex, £B-1, Usman Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

This represents 20% equlty Investment in Tasdeeq Information Services Limited and accordingly classified as Investment In
assoclate. At the year end the Company owns 10,000,000 (2022: 10,000,000) fully paid shares at the rate of Rs. 10 each. The
registered office of Aequiltas Information Services LimHed is situated at Plaza 8-B, Commerclal area Phase V, DHA, Lahore,
Paklistan. The Investment has been made In accordance with the requirements under Companies Act 2017,

BEFERRED TAXATION
2023
Openin {Charge)/ Credit to other
bp 9 credltto profit  comprehensive Closing balance
alance
or loss Income
--------------------- Rupegs - --- -« L.
Peductible ternporary difference
Accelerated tax depreciation /
Amortlzation allowances 425,257 1,246,632 1,671,889
Provislon for expecied credit losses 2,006,834 716,141 - 2,722,975
Payable to provident fund 94,700 (94,700) - .
Lease liabilifles - net 686,389 321,014 - 1,007,403
Workers welfare fund - 1,012,114 - 1,012,114
3,213,180 3,201,201 - 6,414,381
2022
Opening (Charge) / credi iﬁdféﬁﬂﬁi Closing balan
balance to profit or loss P ng balance
Income
--------------------- Rupees - - - - --. o oL L.
Deductible temporary difference
Accelerated lax depreciatlon /
Amortization allowances 1,043,556 (618,299) 425,257
Provision for expected credii losses 1,430,345 576,489 - 2,006,834
Payable to provident fund 124,810 (30,110) - 94,700
Lease liabilities - net 487,782 198,607 686,389
M’qﬁ
3,086,493 126,687 . 3,213,180
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

] Note 2023 2022

TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED Rupees Rupees
Trade debts 58,648,371 85,933,461
Recelvable from LRA 1.3 33,603,884 -
Less: Provislon for expected credlt loss 20.1 {9.389,568) (6,920,116)

82,862,687 79,013,345
The movement In provision for expected credit foss Is as follows:
Balance as at 1 July 6,920,116 4,959,999
Charge for the year 2,469,452 4,714,604
Trade debts written-off - {2,154,487)

2,469,452 1,960,117

Balance as at 30 June 9,389,568 6,920,116

CONTRACT ASSET

This Includes cost of pravisloning of services by the Company to the customers, but right 1o recelve payments against such

goods and services has not yet been eslablished,

Note' 2023 2022
RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES Rupees Rupees
PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited 221 12,862,256 7,503,032
Tasdeeq Information Services ELlmited-Share deposit money 12,733,007 12,733,007
Tasdeeq Information Services Limited-Accrued Markup 1,875,846 1,413,690
TenX (Private) Limited - Relmbursement 1,066,531 327,099
222 28,537,640 21,676,828
This relates to an amount recelvable on account of common expenditures Incurred.
The maxirum aggregate amount oulstanding from related parties at any time during the year was:
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Tasdeeq Information Services Limlted 1,875,846 2,380,190
TenX {Private} Limited 1,030,839 629,024
PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited 8,960,656 4,770,485
Age analysis of receivable from refaled parlies, past due but not impaired is as foltows:
Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
0 to 6 months 15,804,633 8,943,821
6 to 12 months - 12,733,007
Above 12 months 12,733,007 -
28.537,640 21,676,828
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE - UNSECURED
Tasdeeq Infornration Services Limited 231 30,000,000 30,000,000
Add : Related accrued mark-up 1,875,846 1,113,690
31,875,846 31,113,690
Less: Accrued mark-up (1,875,846} (1,113,690)
30,000,000 30,000,000
Balance as at 01 July 30,000,000 -
Paymenis during the year - 30,000,000
Shares issued . -
Balance as at 30 June 30,000,000 30,000,000

"‘uﬁi
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

23.1  This represents loan given to Tasdeeq Informatlon Services Limited (TISL) for the purpose of bridging TISL's cash shortfall 1l
injection of new equity. The loan is renewed on 18th January 2023. The tenure of the loan will be one year from the date of
disburserent. The currenl markup rate Is three month KIROR plus 300 bps. As per the agreement the markup rale will be
three month KIBOR plus 300 bps or at the rate pald by Tasdeeq Information Services Limited to s other sponser
shareholder, whichever is higher, Any delay In payment would yleld a service charge of 1% per month,

Note 2023 2022
24 ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS Rupees Rupees
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances - unsecured, consldered good
- 1o employees 486,500 6,286,168
- 1o suppliers 805,000 481,257
1,291,500 6,767,425
Sales tax receivable 13,652,708 1,767,390
Prepayments 2,660,631 2,450,651

17,494,839 16,985,466

725 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Investment In Government securiltes 25.1 44,202,019 60,727,392

251  This relates to Invesmtent in treasury bills by the Cempany. They carry yield ranging from 15.57% fo 21.99% (2022; 10.2% to
12.4%} per annum. These Treasury bills have maturity period of 3 menths. These Government securities have an aggregate
face value of Rs. 45.5 milfion (2022: Rs, 62 million}

Note 2023 2022
26 CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees
Local currency - deposits and saving accounts 261 81,611,600 34,113,567

26.1  These carries mark up ranglng from 13% to 19.5% (2022: 6.5% to 13%) per annum,

Note 2023 2022
27 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET Rupees Rupees
Income from rating business
- domestic 408,585,756 362,052,187
- foreign 1,710,685 1,610,740

410,296,441 353,662,927

Income from non rating business

- domestic - 3,891,681

- foreign 43,458,633 8,097,465
43,458,533 12,889,146
Less: Provinclal Sales tax {51,137,821) (49,919,652)
27.1 402,617,153 316,632,521

“iqm
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

27.1 Disaggregatlon of Fees income

In the following iable fees Income frem contracts with cusiomers Is disaggregated primarily by types of rating and timing of
revenue recognition.

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Type of raling services
Entity rating 254,509,563 216,864,810
Instrument rating 78,678,439 63,650,155
Fund rating 25,970,618 23,228,409

359,158,620 303,743,374
Type of Non rating services

Consultancy services 43,458,633 12,889,146

402,617,153 316,632,520

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue recognized at a point in ime 322,093,722 264,079,913
Revenue recognized over - iime 80,523,431 52,552,607
402,617,153 316,632,620

‘:28 REMUNERATION COST

Siaff salaries & other benefits 28.1 179,207,763 151,259,864
Rellred employees benefits 1,976,507 1,041,168
External raling commitiee member fee 7,491,664 6,850,000
Advisory / Consuitancy fee 1,190,000 200,000

189,865,934 159,351,032

28.1  Salarles and other benefils include Rs. 5.65 milifon (2022: Rs. 4.25 milllon} in respect of contribuiion to provident fund.

Note 2023 2022
29 INFRASTRUCTURE COST Rupees Rupeas

Rent, rales and taxes 3,184,806 2,734,233
Ulllities 4,925,582 3,390,977
Technology & related expenses 3,769,694 2,182,563
Repalr & Mantalnance 1,974,762 4,328,754
Depreclation on property and equipment 6,103,678 5,540,920
Amortization on intangible assets 824,695 95,047
Depreciation on right of use asset 5,303,540 5,956,790
Loss on disposal of fixed assels 283,342 -
Others 2,097,219 1,561,690

28 457 318 25791974

30 ADMINISTRATIVE COST

Directors meeting expenses 30.1 5,458,900 3,616,774
Legal & professional charges 1,769,885 1,687,992
Entertainment and related expenses 6,694,438 3,836,297
Travelling, foed and accommodaltion 2,630,754 2,429,052
Auditor's remuneratlon 1,150,001 756,000
Tax advisory, consultancy & fees 963,489 722,501
Worker welfare fund 3,490,049 -
Communicatlon and refated expenses 1,375,856 907,211
Promotional expenses 119,428 1,288,569
Others 1,320,647 830,839

24,913,447 16,069,234

30.1  This relates to the meeting fee pald to Directors of the Company for atlending the meetings held during the year.

'“"qfi
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2023 2022
31 OTHER INCOME Rupees Rupees
Income from financial assets:
Mark-up based Income from conventional banks:

Mark-up on savings accounts 2,009,624 5,062,111
Unwinding of Government grant 102,793 783,263
Mark-up on loan given to assoclale 6,270,061 1,908,452
Profit on short term Investment 8,818,490 2,034,455
17,200,968 9,788,282

Income from non-financial assets: '
Gain on disposal of fixed assels - 2,219,268
Relmbursement from clients 597,330 4,730,010
Miscellaneous income 128,587 119,954
Shared services with PACRA Analytics {Pvt) Limited - 2,749,179
725,97 9,818,410

17,926,885

, 19,606,692

32 FINANGCE COST

Mark-up on long ferm borrowings 444,877 1,344,549
Finance cost on lease [tabllity 3,277,239 1,674,916
Bank charges 43,376 73,182

3,765,492 3,092,647

33 TAXATION

Current tax

Current year 48,610,659 36,865,911
Prior year - -
48,610,659 36,865,911
Deferred tax {3,201,201) (126,687)
45,409,458 36,739,224

331 Reconciliation between accounting profit and taxation

Profli before {axation 171,012,395 127,219,722

- Tax af applicable rate of 29% (2022: 29%) 49,593,595 36,893,719
Tax effect of deductlons (982,936) (27,809)
Deferred taxation impact {3.201,201) {126,687)

45,409,458 36,739,224

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit after tax 125,602,937 90,480,498
Welighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the year 1,452 900 7,452,900
Earnings per share - baslc and diluted 16.85 12.14

341 Baslc earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the profit atiributable to equity holders of the Company by welghted
average number of ordinary shares,

34.2  There Is no dilutive elfect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTO!

The aggregate amounts charged In these unconsolid
other Executives of the Company are as follows:

Note _
Managerlal remuneration F
Contribution to provident fund
Bonus 35.1

Meeting fee

Reimbursable expenses

Total

I

Numbers

=

Amount of bonus paid to Ex. CEO Mr. Shahzad Saleem,

Transactions and balances with related parties

Bafances and transactions with relaled parties are as fol

100 % owned Subsidiary company

PACRA Analytics {Private} Limited

On account of:

Expense paid on behalf of subsidiary company
Year end balances - unsecured

Payable to related pariy - unsecured Net

'*qﬂ




THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

2023 2022
Associated company (20% owned) Rupees Rupees
Tasdeeq Information Services Limited
Investment In associate durlng the year - -
Amount on account of loan during the year - 30,000,000
Expense pald on behalf of related party during the year 1,393,788 1,266,500
Expenses pald by relaled party on behaif of Company during the year 2,100,459 1,595,237
Mark-up on loan charged to related party during the year 6,270,061 1.908.452
Markup pald by related party during the year 4,394,215 794,762
Payable to related party - unsecured (1,025,408) (794,953)
Associated company {Common Directorship)
TenX (Private) Limited
Expense paid on behalf of related party during the year 1,395,673 1,266,500
Post employment benefit plans / Other related parties
On account of:
Contributions to Provident Fund Trust 5,654,917 4,254,802
Year end payable balance
Provident fund 1,511,269 793,336
Direciors
Muhammad Adnan Afag (10% equity held)
On account of:
Dividend pald 8,198,190 8,198,190
Meeting fee - 40,000
Mr. Shahzad Saleem, Fx, CEQ
On account of:
Remuneration 14,000,000 22,956,861
Bonus 12,325,266 8,000,000
Year end payable balance
Salary payable 2,000,000 -

"’q?ﬁ
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Mr. Usman Halder, CEOQ

On account of:

Remuneratfon 10.060,000 -
Bonus . -
Year end payable balance

Salary payable -

Mumtaz Hussaln Syed (27% equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid 24,147,360 22,135,080

Meeting fee 700,000 460,000

Sardar All Watto (13.5% equity held)
On account of:

Dividend pald 12,073,680 11,067,551

Meeling Fee 900,000 615,000

Usman Halder (13.5% Equity held)
On account of:

Bividend pald ‘ 12,073,680 11,067,540

Meaeting Fee -

Other Directors {0.00930% equity held)
On account of:
Dividend patd 72 77

Meeling fee 2,975,000 2,270,000

Share hotders holding more than 20% equily:

Lahore Stock Exchange (36% Equity hefd)

On account of:

Dividend paid 32,196,604 29,513,462
Key Management Personnel (other than directors)

Mr. Shahzad Saleem, CEO

On account of:

Remuneration 14,000,000 22,956,861

""Qri
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The maln risks arising from the Company’s flnanclal Instruments are credlt risk, fiquidity risk, forelgn currency risk and interest rate risk.
The management reviews and agrees policles for menaging each of these risks which are summarized below:

Credit Rlsk

Credit risk Is the risk which arises with the posslbllity that one party to a financlal instrument wilj fall to discharge Its obligation and cause
the other parly to incur a financlal foss. The Company attempts o controt credit risk by monltoring credlt exposures, limiting transactions
with specific counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

Concenlratlon of credit risk arlses when a number of counterpariles are engaged In similar business activilles or have simllar economic
fealures that would cause their abifity to meet conlraciual obligations to be simllarly affected by changes In economic, political or other
conditions. Concenlrations of credit risk indicale the relative sensilivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular Indusiey.

The Company Is exposed to credit risk on rade debts, deposils, other recaivables and bank balances. The Company seeks 1o minimize
the credilt risk exposure through having exposures anly to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securittes where applicable.
The maximum exposure lo credi! rlsk at the reporting date Is:

Carrying Values

Note 2023 2022
{Rupees) {Rupees)
Trade debts - unsecured 20 82,862,687 79,013,345
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 24 17,494,839 16,985,466
Advance income tax - net 39,847,512 33,904,599
Cash and bank balances 26 81,611,600 34,113,667
221,816,638 164,016,977

Trade debts
Analysis of trade debis that are nelther past due nor Impalred and that are past due but not Impaired is described in Note 22,

An impairment analysis is performed al each reportlng date using a provislon malrix lo measure expected credit losses. The provision
rales are based on days past due for groupings of varlous cuslomer segments with simlfar loss patterns (l.e., by gecgraphlcal reglon,
product type, custemer type and rating). The calculation reflects the prababliity-weighled oulcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that Is avallable at the reporting date aboul past evenls, current conditions and forecas!s of future
econoric condltions. The maximum exposure to credit risk af the reporling date is the carrying value of each class of financlal assets. The
Company does not hold collateral as securlty. The leflers of credit and ather forms of credit Insurance are considered integrat part of
trade receivables and cansidered in the calculation of Impairment.

Set out below Is the informalion about the credit risk exposure on the Company's trade debls uslng a provisicn malrix;

0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days  Over 27t days 365 and above Total
As at 30 June 2023
Expected credit loss rate - - . . 100% 100%
Estimated total gross
carrylng amount at default
73,688,033 11,680,287 4,414,483 - 2,469,452 92,252,255
Expected credit joss - - - - 2,469,452 2,469,452
0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days  Over 27t days 365 and ahove Total
As at 30 June 2022
Expected credit loss rate 0.9% 30.2%
Estimated tolal gross
carryling amount at default
64,982,147 20,950,714 - - - 85,933,461
Expected credl! toss 594,079 6,326,038 - - - 6,920,117

—
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Rating Rating Agency 2023 2022
37.1.2 Bank balances Short Term Long Term {Rupees) {Rupees)
Bank AL Habib At AAA PACRA 81,611,600 34,113,567
81,611,600 34,113,567

37.2  Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wiif not be able lo meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company applies prudent
risk management policles by maintalning sufficlent cash and bank balances and by keeplng committed credit lines. The table below
summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financlal 4abilities at the following reporting dates;

Year ended Less than 3
30 June 2023 On demand months 3 to 12 months 110 5 years > 5 years Total

Short term borrowing- - - - . - R
secured

Contract Fability - 106,356,581 - . - 106,356,581

Current poriten of fong - - - - .
term flnance

Current portion of Jease - - 5,924,140 8,156,743 - 14,080,883
llabllitles
Accrued mark-up 30,034 - - - - 30,034
Trade and other payables 98,786,023 - - - - 98,786,023
98,816,057 106,356,681 5.924,7i40 8,156,743 - 219,253,521
Year ended Less than 3
30 June 2022 On demand months 310 12 months 110 5 years > b years Total

Short term borrowing- . - - . .

secured

Conlract liability - 95,825,187 - - - 95,825,187

Current portion of long 9,282,610 - - - . 9,282,670

term finance

Current poriicn of lease - - 6,462,098 7,818,341 - 14,280,439

liabilitles

Accrued mark-up 866,414 - . - . 866,414

Trade and other payables 83,060,867 - . . - 83,060,867
93,209,951 95,825,187 6,462,098 7,818,341 - 203,315,577

.‘3'7.4 Interest Rate RIsk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that faic vatue or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate due to changes in markel interest rate.

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes In market Inferest rates relates primarlly lo the fund obtained from parent company with
floating Interest rates.

(Increase) / decrease Effect on profit before tax
in basls points 2023 2022
{Rupees} {Rupees)
+100 8,161,160 3,411,357
-100 {8,161,160) (3,411,357)

3756  Falr Value of Financlal Instruments

The carrying value of all financial assels and Habllities reflected In the financial statements approximate their fair value. Fair value is
determined on the basls of objective evidence at each reporting date.
.-6[ f{
l
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Reconciltation of movements of Habllitles 1o cash flows arlsing from financing activities

2023
Long term Lease Habllitles Dividend Totat
finances payable
------------ Rupges ---++eev- oo
Balance as at 01 July 10,065,933 12,605,523 - 22,671,456
Cashflows
Long term loans repaid net of repayment {10,065,933) - - (10,065,933)
Lease (labilities - net - {1,478,037) . (7,478,037
Dividend declared - - 89,434,800 89,434,800
Dividend paid - - {89.,434,800) {89.434,800)
Balance as at 30 June - 5,127,486 - 5,127,486
2022
tonglerm —y ose liavlliles 0 1vidend Total
finances payable
------------ RUpEBS - - - ---a-uuo-

Balance as at 01 July 29,628,170 19,561,848 - 49,190,018
LCashffows
Long term feans obtained net of repayment 19,562,237 - - {19,562,237)
Lease lrabilitles - net - (6,956,325) - (6,956,325}
Dividend declared - - 81,981,900 81,981,900
Dividend paltd - - (81,981,900) (81,981,900)
Balance as at 30 June 10,065,933 12,605,623 - 22,671,456

Capital risk management
The Board's policy is to maintain an efiicient caplial base so as o mainlain Investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain the

future development of Its business. The Board of Directors monitors the return an capital employed, which the Company defines as
operating Income divided by total capltal employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to ardlnary shareholders.

The Company's objectives when managing capHal are:

)] lo safeguard the entily's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to pravide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, and

{in to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the caplial structure In the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assels, In

erder to maintain or adjust the capital structure, lhe Company may adjust the amount of dividends ald to shareholders, Issue new shares,
or sell assets to reduce debt,

Nelther there were any changes In the Company's approach to capltal management during the year nor the Company Is subject fo
externally imposed capital requirements.

"’(\.’i
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30 are as follows:

2023 2022

Average number of employees during the year 95 75
Number of employees as at 30 June S0 80

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financlal statements were authorized for issue on by the Board of Directors of the
Company. -;q;{

( Ao

Chlef Executlve Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the members of The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
2023

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of The Pakistan Credit
Rating Agency Limited and its subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2023, and (of) its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted
by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Director's report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

a Page 1 of 3
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

‘5Q Page 2 of 3
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Muhammad Ahsan Shahzad.

@MM \

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants

Lahore

Date: 09 October 2023

UDIN: AR202310079Q530tFXWI

Page 3 of 3
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



¢

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capitai
12,500,000 (30 Jun 2022: 12,500,000)
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Accumulated profits

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities

- CURRENT LIABILITIES

" Current portion of long-term finance - secured

Current-portion of deferred Government grants
Current-portion of lease liabilities

Accrued markup

Contract liability

Provision for taxation

Trade and other payables

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Properly and equipment

Intangible assets

Right-of-use asset
Long term investments

. Long term deposits
Deferred taxation

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade debts - unsectired

Caontract assets

Receivable from related parties

Loan o an associate - unsecured
Advances, prepayments & other receivables
Advance income tax

Shert term investment

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
125,000,000 125,000,000
7 74,529,000 74,529,000
112,202,780 78,120,580
186,731,780 152,649,580
10 8,156,743 | | 7,818,341
8,156,743 7,818,341
8 - 9,282,670
9 . 102,793
10 5,924,140 6,462,098
30,034 866,413
12 107,031,625 97,982,427
49,046,263 37,509,298
13 71,827,263 58,470,207
233,859,325 210,675,906
428,747,848 371,143,827
14
15 25,037,025 14,985,098
16 3,799,443 133,132
17 10,607,079 11,913,580
18 65,844,414 68,965,953
1,335,300 1,335,300
19 6,414,381 3,213,180
113,037,643 100,548,243
20 83,752,686 79,726,744
21 - -
22 15,675,384 14,173,796
23 30,000,000 30,000,060
24 17,556,964 17,243,713
40,267,106 34,603,221
25 44,202,019 60,727,392
26 84,256,046 34,122,718
315,710,205 270,597,584
428,747,848 371,143,827

The annexed notes 1to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Chief Executive
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENY OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers -net

Remuneration cost
Infrastructure cost
Administrative cost

Operating profit

Provision for expected credit losses on trade debis
Other income

Finance cost

Share of loss of associated company

Profit before taxation
- Taxation
7 Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the year

ltems that may be reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent period

Share of other comprehensive loss of associated company

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent period

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed noles 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statemeints.
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Chief Executive
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Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

27 409,296,590 325,069,245
28 (193,154,648) (160,811,345)
29 {28,507,511) (25,791,974}
30 {26,945,818) (17,749,485}
(248,607,977) (204,352,804)
160,688,613 120,716,441
20.1 (2,469,452) (4,753,087)

31 18,017,669 16,890,271
32 (3,765,839) (3,092,847)
18 (3.066,314) {177,257

169,404,677 128,583,721
33 (45,832,452) (37,374,534)
123,572,225 92,209,187
18 {(55,225) (141,641)
123,517,000 92,067,546

16.58 12.37
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
CONSOLIATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Balance as on 01 July 2021

Total comprehensive income for the perlod

Profit after taxation
Cther comprehensive income/(loss)

Transaction with owners

Awterim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2022 at
the rate of Rs 5 per share
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2022 at
the rate of Rs 6 per share

Balance as on 30 June 2022
Total comprehensive income for the year

Profil after taxation
Other comprehensive incomef{loss)

Transaction with owners

Final dividend for the year ending 30 June 2022 at
the rate of Rs 6 per share

Interim dividend for the year ending 30 June 2022
at the rate of Rs 6 per share

i

Balance as on 30 June 2023

Issued, Capital reserve )| Revenue Reserve
ubscri
N SClilbed Surplu's on Accumulated Total
and paid-up revaluation of rofits
share capital freehold land P
-------------------------------------- RUPEES -t
74,529,000 - 68,034,935 142,563,935
- - 92,209,187 92,209,187
- {141,641) {141,641)
- 92,067,546 92,067,546
- - (37.,264,500) (37,264,500)
- (44,717,400} {44,717,400)
- - (81,981,900) (81,981,300}
74,528,000 - 78,120,580 152,649,581
- 123,572,225 123,572,225
. . {55,225) {55,225)
- 123,517,000 123,517,000
- (44,717,400} (44,717,400)
- {44,717,400) {44,717,400)
- (89,434,800} (89,434,800}
74,529,000 - 112,202,780 186,731,781

The annexed notes 1 te 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statemenits,
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation on property and equipment & amortization
Depreciation on right of use asset

Finance cost

Mark-up on saving accounts

Mark-up on loan given to associate

Profit on short term investment

Miscellaneous income

Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets

Unwinding of Government grant

Provision for expected credit losses on lrade debts
Share of loss of associated company

Working capital changes

{Increase) / decrease in current assets
- Trade debts
- Advances, Prepayments & others
- Contract Asset

Increase / {decrease} in current liabilities
- Trade and other payables
- Contract [fability

Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid

Income tax paid

Met cash generated from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assels

Loan to associates

; Short term investment made

Interest received

Net cash (used in} / generated from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activittes

Long term finance paid

Lease rentals paid

Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial stalemenlts.

Chief Executive
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Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
169,404,677 129,583,721
6,928,373 6,635,967
17 5,303,540 5,956,790
32 3,765,839 3,092,647
1 {2,100,408) (5,094,869)
3 (6,270,061) (1.908,452)
31 (8,818,490) (2,034,455}
(128,587) (119,954)
283,342 (2,219,268}
31 (102,793) (783,263)
20.1 2,469,452 4,753,087
3,066,314 177,257
173,801,798 137,039,209
(6,271,094) 13,657,804
(9,209,885) (24,515,529)
- 2,988,905
(15,480,979} (7.868,720)
21,614,253 6,092,260
9,049,198 38,783,660
30,563,451 44,875,920
188,883,670 174,046,409
(541,718) {258,398)
(43,215,565} {34,145,124)
(A) 145,126,387 139,642,887
15 (16,623,959) (8,953,439)
148,496 2,902,000
(4,491,006} -
- {30,000,000)
16,654,840 {60,727,392)
16,287,340 9,157,730
(B) 11,985,711 (87,621,101}
{10,065,933} {19,562,2386)
(7,478,037) {6,956,325)
(89,434,800) (81,981,900}
(C) (106,978,770) {108,500,461)
{A+B+C) 50,133,328 (56,478,676)
34,122,718 90,601,394
84,256,046 34,122,718
”’qﬂ!
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

The PACRA Group (the Group") comprises of The Pakistan Credit Raling Agency Limited ("PACRA™ ("the Hoiding
Company”}, PACRA Analytics {Private) Limited ("PAPL") {100% owned) and Tasdeeq Infoermation Services Limited {"TISL"
(20% owned). For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, PACRA and its consolidated subsidiary & associate
are referred to as the Group.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited is part of PACRA Group which consist of:

% age of direct % age of effective
shareholding

Holding Company

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited

Subsidiary company

PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited 100% 100%
Associated company

Tasdeeq Information Services Limited 20% 20%

The Holding Company was incorporated as a private limited company in Pakistan on August 18, 1994 and converted into a
public limited company on April 30, 2004. The business of the Company is to carry out risk evaluation of companies and
specific instruments. The evaluation is expressed in terms of assigned credit rating to the entity or the instrument reflecting the
capacity to honor its debt or other fixed term obligations. The registered office of the Company is situated at Awami Complex,
FB-1, Usman Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited - {the "Subsidiary Company")

Pacra Analytics (Private) Limited (the "Subsidiary Company”} was incorporated as a private limited company in Pakistan on
January 04, 2010 under the Companies Crdinance, 1984 (superseded by the Companies Act, 2017). The objectives of the
Company are to carry on business as management & financial consullants, risk managers, projeclt manager, tax & trust
consultants, planners, advisors, accountants, share regisirars, surveyors, assessors, sUpervisors, promoters and / or technical
advisors of or for any person, company, brust, banks and financial institulions. The registered office of the Company Is situated
at Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

Tasdeeq Information Services Limited - (the "Associated Company")

Tasdeeq Information Services Limiled {the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on March 25, 2016 as a public limited
company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 {repealed by the Companies Acl, 2017). The Company's registered office is
located al Building 8, Sector B, Commercial Area, Phase V, DHA, Lahore. The main objectives of the Company are to carry out

ihe business of a Credit Information Company for collecting credit information as permissible by law relating to debtors of
banks, financial institutions, non-banking financial institutions, non-financial companies and other lenders or authorities
including retailers, insurance companies, utility providers and also 1o collect and maintain any credit informalion, with respect
to individuals, partnerships, corporations, institutions, trusts, estates, cooperatives, associations, Government or Governmental
subdivisions or agencies or any other entity.

1.1 Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Holding Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the vating rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or converlible are considered when assessing whether the Holding Company controls
another entity. The Holding Company also assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting
power but is able to govern the financial and operating policies by virte of de-facto control. De-facto control may arise in
circumstances where the size of the Holding Company’s voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other
shareholders give the Company the power to govern the financial and operating poficies, etc.

Subsidtary are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company. They are deconsolidated from
the dale that control ceases.

The Group consolidated financlal statements include the consolidated financial stalements of Holding Company {"PACRA") and
its subsidiary & associate.

- qsi
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1.2

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

The Holding Company appiies the acquisition methed to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary Is the fair values of the assels transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equily Interests issuted by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilittes and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Holding
Company recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree an an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-conlrolling interest’'s proportionate share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable nel assets. The
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries are prepared upto the same reporting date
using consistent accounting policies.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair
valie of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Holding Company is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or fiability is recognized in
accordance with JAS 39 either in consolidated statement of profil or loss or as a change to consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, Contingent consideration thal is classified as equity is nol remeasured, and its subsequent setlement
is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at the excess of the aggregate of the consideration ransferred and the fair value of non-
contralling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and fiabilities assumed. If this consideration Is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. After
initial recognition, is measured at carrying value i.e, cost at the date of acquisition less any accumulated impairment.

The financial statements of subsidiaries have been consolidated on line by line basis. Al significant inter-company transactions,
balances, income and expenses on transactions batween group companies are eliminated. Profits and Josses resulting from
inter-company transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated,

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not resuit in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that is,
as transaclions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference belween fair value of any consideration paid and
the refevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded In equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Holding Company ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity [s re-measured to its fair value at the date
when conlrol is fost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or foss, The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an assoclate, joint venture or financial asset, In
addition, any amounts previcusly recognized in other comprehensive income in respact of that entily are accounted for as if
the Holding Company had directly disposed of the related assets or labilities. This may mean that amounls previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

On 26 March 2021, the Company entered into an agreement titled ‘Agreement for Acquiring Shareholding’ with Lanka Rating
Ageney Limited {LRA) - Sri Lanka, wherein, LRA agreed to issue 26,818,772 shares (befng 15% of its planned issued shares)
to the Company, without any consideration, within 30 days of issuance of registration certificate to LRA, by local regulator, |LRA
has, however, issued these shares In two trenches, in FY 2021 and FY 2023, respectively. The Company has the option of
selling these shares back to LRA (for Sri Lankan Rupees 2fshare) after 5 years. Atthe same time, the Company and LRA also
entered Inlo an ‘Agreement for Technical Affiliation’ for provision of services by the Company; for a period of five (5) years, as
discussed below, against annual cash consideration. LRA has offered these shares on the requirements of its local regulator,

At the inception of the above-mentioned agreements, in accordance with the requirements of relevant accounting standards,
the Corapany determined that considering the financiat condition of LRA, along with locat economic environment, restrictions
attached to shares to be held by the Company and non-performance risk resulting from restrictions on foreign remittances, a rea-

sonable estimate of fair value of these shares (including the embedded derivative) is not expected to be significant to the finan-
cial statements. Accordingly, the Company had determined that transaction price for provision of lechnical services effeciively
only consisted of cash considerations. The Company continue to reassess the fair value of these shares {inciuding the embed-
ded derivalive) at each reporting date. Owing 1o the current financial and econoimic conditions in $ri Lanka coupled with the re-
cent sovereign default, the Company has delermined, as of reporting date, a reasonable estimate of fafr value of these shares
(including the embedded derivative) is nat expected to be significant to the financial statements as a result of multiple uncer-
lainties and uninsurable risks which a market participant will take into account while estimating non-performance risk relating to
the L.RA. The Company will continue to reassess the situation in Sri Lanka and reassess the estimate on future reporting dates
in fine with requirements of IFRS 9,

"(lﬂ
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Under the Agreement for Technical Affiliation, in addition to services provided for initial setup of LRA's rating business, the
Company is performing agreed upon but unspecified quantity of services refating to training, rating audit and review. In
accordance with IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracl with customers' the Company has determined that these ongoing aclivities
consist of distinct but substantively same services and thus can be classified as a single performance obligation. Further, in
accordance with practical expedient available under para B16 of IFRS 15, the Company was entitled to invoice and recognize
revenue amounting to US$ 212,500. As discussed above, at inception, the Company has assessed that inflow of economic
resources from LRA were not probable. Accordingly, the Company had recognized revenue on receipt basis. As of reporting
date, owing to successful receipt of remitlances from LRA and its commitment to settle the remaining balance as soon as
possible, the Company has delermined that it Is probable that it will fully recover the remaining due consideration, amounting
to US$ 117,500. Accordingly, the Company has recognized the related trade debt (refer to note 20).

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These unconsolidated financial statements {hereinafter referred to as financial statements') have been preparad in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Beard {IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisians of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to the published approved accounting standards

The new and amended standards and interprelations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these new and amended standards and
interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standard
1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements fo clarify how to classify debl and other liabilities as current or non-current,

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments lo paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

+ What is meant by a right to defer settlement

« That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

* That classificalion is unaffected by the likelthood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

« That only if an embedded derivative in a converiible liability is itseif an equity instrument would the terms of a
liabitity not Impact its classification. )

+ Only covenants wilh which an eniity is required lo comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of a liabilily as current or non-current. In addition, an enlity has to disclose information In the notes
that enables users of financial statemants to understand the risk that non-currant liabilities with covenants could
become repayable within twelve monihs.

The amendments are effective for annual reporiing periods beginning on or after January 01, 2024 and must be
applied retrospectively. The amendments are not expecied to have a material impact on the Company's financial
staterments.

Disclosure of Accounting Palicies - Arnendments fo 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - The amendments

IAS 1 and alm to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by:

IFRS

Practice
Statement 2 - Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant” accounting pollcies with a requirement to

disclose their 'material’ accounting policies; and

- Adding guidance on how entilies apply the concept of maleriality in making decisions about accounting policy
disclosures.

The amendments to tAS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023 with earlier
application permitled. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on
the application of the definition of malerial to accounting policy information, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary, The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information
disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended requiremsnts.

—

*qﬂi
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to 1AS 8 - The amendments clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimales and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, they
clarify how entities use measurement technigues and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporiing periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023 and apply to
changes In accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed. The amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

IAS 12 Deferred Tax related lo Assets and Liabilities arlsing from a Single Transaction - Amendments to IAS 12 - |n May
2021, the Board Issued amendments fo tAS 12, which narrow the scope of the inifial recognition exception under
IAS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise lo equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

The amendments should be applied to fransactions thal occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparalive period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a
deferred tax assel {provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be
recognised for all deduclible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning
obligations. The amendments are nol expected to have a material Impact on the Company's financiai
stafements.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements & Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Conlribulion of

&1AS 28 Assels between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture - {Amendment). The effeciive date of
Amendments to IFRS 10 and JAS 28 has been deferred indefinitely (until the research project of JASB, on the
equity method, has been concluded. Earlier application of the September 2014 amendments continues fo be
permilled. The Company expects that the adoption of the amendments will have no material effect on the
Company's financial stalements.

IFRS 16 Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments raquires a sellerlessee to subsequently
measure lease liabilities arising from a leaseback in a way that it doss not recognise any amount of the gain or
loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The new requirements do not preveni a seller-lessee from
recognising in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to the pardial or full termination of a lease. The amendments
are effective for annual reporiing pericds beginning on or after January 01, 2024. A seller-lessee applies the
amendraents retrospectively in accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors to sale and lsaseback iransactions entered into after the date of initial application.

In addition {o the above, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be nofified by the SECP for

the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

{Annuat periods

Standard beginning on or after)
IFRS 1 First-time Adeption of International Financial Rep¢ 01 January 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023

The above amendments and interpretations are not expected to have any significant impact on financial statements of the
Company.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES RESULTING EROM AMENDMENTS IN STANDARDS
DURING THE YEAR

The accounting policies adopted in the preparalion of these financial statements are consistent with those of the previous
financial year, except for following amendments to accounting standards which are sffective for annual periods beginning on
or after July 01, 2022 (unless otherwise stated), The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective:

IFRS 03 Business Combinations - The amendment updates a reference In IFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting without changing the accounting requirements for business combinations.

The amendments add an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 Business Combinations to avold the
issue of potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent fiabilities that would be within the
scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 tevies, If incurred
separately. The exceptlon requires entities to apply the criteria In IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of
the Conceptual Framework, to determine whether a present abligation exists at the acquisition date. The
amendments also add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. n accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendments
prospectively, Le., to business combinations occurring after the beginning of the annual reporting period In

These amendments had no Impact on the separate financial statements of the Company.

’"’qii
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IAS 16

1AS 37

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Property, ptant and equipment — Amendment {o clarify the prohibition on an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of properly, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Inslead, an enlily recognizes the procesds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those ilems, in
profit or loss.

tn accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendments retrospectively only to
ftems of PPE made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity
first applies the amendment {the date of initial application). These amendments had no impact on the financial
statements of the Company as there were no sales of such items produced by property, plant and equipment
made avallable for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Amendments to specify that when assessing whether
a contract s onerous or loss-making, an entity needs lo include costs that relate directly to a contract to provide
goods or services including both incremental cosls (e.g., the costs of direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of costs directly related to contract activities (e.g., depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract
and costs of contract management and supervision). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
Company applied the amendments to the contracts for which it had not fulfiled all of its obligations at the
beginning of the reporting period. These amendments had no impact on the financial stalements of the
Company, as prior to the application of the amendments, the Company had not identified any contracis as being
onerous and ihe unavoidable costs under the conlracts, which were the costs of fulfilling them, comprised of
incremental costs directly related to the contracts and an allocalion of costs directly refated to contract activities.

The adoplion of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any material effect on ihe financial statement.

In addition to the above amendments to standards, improvements to various accounting standards {under the annual
improvements 2018 - 2020 cycle) have also been issued by the IASB in May 2020. Such improvements were generally
effeclive for accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2022;

IFRS ¢

IFRS 16

1AS 41

Financiat Instruments: Fees in the "10 per cent’ les! for derecognition of financial liabiliies - The amendment
clarifies the fees that an enlity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the tarms of the original financlal liability. These fees include only those pald or
received belween the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or fender
on the other's behalf, There is no similar amendment proposed for IAS 39,

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendment to financial liabililiss that are
meodified or exchanged on of after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendrment (the date of Initlal application). These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the
Company as there were no madifications of the Company's financial instruments during the period.

Leases: Lease incentives — The amendment removes the illustration of payments from the lessor relating to
leasehold improvements in Hlusirative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the fireatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 18 and had no impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

Agriculture; Taxation in fair value measurements — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of
1AS 41 that endities exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of assets wilhin the scope of
1AS 41,

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it did not have assets in
scope of IAS 41 as at the reporling date.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise stated,

Presentation currency

These cansolidated financial stalements are presented in Pak Rupee, which s the Group's functional and presentation
currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated,

"iqf(
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5.2

5.3

6.1

6.1.1

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Eslimales and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on the historical
experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimale is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and fulure
periods If the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity
or areas where assumptions and estimales are significant lo the financial statements are as follows:

Useful lives, residual values, pattern of econormic benefits and impairment

Estimates with respect to depreciable lives, residual values and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the analysis
of the management of the Group. Further the Group reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual
basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property and equipment,
with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge.

Expected credit loss / loss allowances against trade debts, deposits and other receivables

£CLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The Group has elecled to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision malrix that is based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-locking faclors specific 1o the deblors and the economic environment, When determining
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased signilicantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's hisiorical experience and Informed
credit assessment including forward-looking information.

The maximum period considered when estimaling ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed
lo credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assels measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
lhe assets,

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on & 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short
ntaturities of the exposures.

The Group reviews its lrade receivables al each reporting date to assess whether provision should he recorded in the
statement of profit or loss. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows when determining the lavel of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number
of factors and actual results may differ, resulling in fulure changes to the provisions.

Taxation

The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorilies. Instances where the
Group's views dilfer from the views taken by the income lax depariment at the assessment slage and where the Group
considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with faw, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consalidated financlal statements are consistent with those of the
previous year except as described in Note 3:

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when services are rendered to the customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group
expects to be entitled to those services excluding sales tax and after deduction of discounts.

&
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Feeincome

a) Rating

Revenue from raling services is recognized at point In Ume when services are rendered to the cuslomer.

b) Monitering

Revenue attributed to monitoring is recagnized over the periad in which menitoring is performed, generally one year.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues under the effective interest method.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a fease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of Ume in exchanga for consideratian,

Company as lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use), Right-of-use assels are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of loase liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assels includes the amount of lease liabilittes
recognized and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estmated uselul lives of the assets,

Lease liabilities - rented premises

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments lo be made over the lease term. The lease payments Include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expecied o be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the Iease term
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its Incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement dale because the interest sate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the commencement date,
the amount of lease lfabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made,

In additien, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used o determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Property and equipment

hems of property and equipment other than freehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount being the fair value al the date of revaluaiion less subsequent
Impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes other costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction inciuding
expendilures on material, labor and overheads direclly refating to construction, erectlon and Installation of property and
equipment.

Land is recognized at revalued amount based on valuation by external independent valuer, A revaluation surplus credited to
other reserves (capital reserves) in shareholders’ equity and presented as separale line item in stalement of financial position.

Increases In the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land was recognized, in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. As at year end, the Company does not have any freehold land.

2
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Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with specific
assels incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-pregress. These are transferred to
specific assets as and when these are available for use,

All other repairs and mainlenance are charged to expense during the period in which these are incurred.

Depreciation charged on all property and equipment except freehald land, is based on the straight line method so as to write
off the historical cost of an asset over ils estimated usefu life at rates menticned in note 15 after taking into account their
residual values. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which these are capitalized, while no depreciation is
charged in the month in which an asset is disposed off,

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Gains and losses on sale of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from sale with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in statement of
comprehensive income.

Intangible

Intangible asset is stated at cost less accumutated amortization for finite intangible asset and any identified impairment loss.
The estimated useful life and amortization method is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Finite intangible assets are amontized using straight-line method at rates mentioried in note 16 to these unconsolidated
financial statements. Amertization on additions to intangible assets is charged from the month in which an asset is put to use
and on disposal up to the month of disposal.

Stoek in trade

Stocks are valued at lower of cost and nel realizable value. Cost is delermined on the basis of weighted average method. Net
realizable value is arrived at by considering the technical obsolescence of stocks and the replacement cost thereof in the
ordinary course of business,

Goods in transit are valued at cost comprising Invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.,
Taxation

Income tax comprises cuirent and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in statement of comprehensive income except to the
extent that it relales to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized in
other comprehensive income or equily, as the case may be,

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on 1axable income for the year at the current rates of taxation after taking inlo account
applicable tax credits and tax rebates, if any. The charge for the current tax also includes adjustments, where considered
necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

The Group accounts for deferred taxation, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences arising on
differences between carrying amounts of assets and fiabilities in the consolidated financial statements and their corresponding
tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are recagnized for all taxable temporary dilferences and deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probabte that laxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the pericd when
the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheel date.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Monelary assets and liabilllies denominated in foreign cirrencies at the reporting date are
retransiated to the functional currency at the exchange rate al that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is
the difference between amarlized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest

and payments during the year, and the amorlized cost in foreign currency translated al the exchange rate at the end of the
year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured al fair value in a foreign currency are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined., Non-monetary items that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated,

Foreign currency differences arising on retranskation are recognized in statement of profit or loss.
“’*QR
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and financial liability are offset and the net amounl is reported in the balance sheet if the Group has a legally
enforceable right 1o set off the recognized amounts and intends efther to settfe on net basis or to realize the assets and settle
the liahifittes simultaneously.

Provision

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a resuit
of a past event, and il is probable that an sutfiow of economic benefits will be required to setile the abligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reffects the best estimate of the
expanditure required to setile the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. However, provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise of cash and bank balances and short term running finance,

Trade and other payable

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and measured at fair value of
consideration receivable. These assels are wriltten off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss
experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Contract Balances
Contract Asset

A contract asset Is the right to consideration for rendering of services if the Group performs by providing services to customer
hefore the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration
that is conditionat.

Contract Liability

A contract liability is the obligation to render services 1o a customer for which the Group has received consideration {or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. if a customer pays consideration before the Group render services to the
customer, a contract liabilily is recagnized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Conlract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the contract,

Related Party Transactions

All transactions involving refaled parties arising in normal course of business are conducted at arm's length at normal
commercial rales on the same terms and conditions as third parly transactions using valuation modes, as admissible, except in
extremely rare circumstances where, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Group to do
s0.

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Afinancial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

Financial assets
Financial assets - initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subseguently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
camprehensive income {OC), and fair value through profit or loss,

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business mode! for managing them. With the exception of trade debls and bank balance that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value pius, in the case of a financial asset not at falr value through profit or loss, transaclion costs.
Trade debls that do not conlain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the praciical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15, Refer to the accounting policy in Revenue from contracts
with customers.

In order for a financial assel to be classified and measured al amorlized cost or fair value throeugh OCI, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest {SPPIY' on the principal amount outstanding.

ﬁ‘qﬁ
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

This assessment is referred to as the SPP test and is performed at an instrument level,

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from coffecting contractual cash fiows, selling the
financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
conventian in the markel place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

The Group’s financial assels include long-term deposits, trade debts, loans and advances, other receivables and bank
halances.

Financial assets - subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortized cost {debt instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
{(equity instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through OC! with recycting of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financiat assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assels designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through prafit or loss, or financial assels mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows thal are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model, Notwithstanding the criteria for
debt Instruments to be classified al amortized cost or at falr value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at falr value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity invesiments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through OC!. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognized as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate
instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivalive; and the hybrid contract
is not measured at fair value through profit or loss, Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss, Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the lerms of the contract that significanily
madifias the cash flows that would olherwise be required or a reclassification of a financlal asset oul of the falr value through
profit or loss category.

A derivalive embedded within a hyhrid contract containing a financial asset host is not accounied for separately. The financial
assel host together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a financlal asset at fair value
through profit or loss,

The Group does nat have financial assets recorded al fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most refevant to the Group, The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

+ The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Galns and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortized costs includes trade debts and other receivables.

""qﬁz
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Financial assets designated at fair vatue through OCt with no recycling of cumulative gains and tosses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at
fair value through OC{ when they meet the definition of equity under JAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classificalion is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis,

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profil or ioss, Dividends are recognized as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity
instruments designated at fair value through OC! are not subject 1o impairment assessment,

The Group does nat have any financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments).

Financial assets at falr value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt instruments at fair vatue through OCI if both of the following conditiens are met:

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling; and

+ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principat
and interest on the principal amount outstanding

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortized cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognized in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumuative fair vaiue
change recognized in OCl is recycled to profit or loss,

Financial assets - Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized when;

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

* The Group has wransferred its rights 10 receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has translerred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered inlo a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and lo what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When [t has neither ransferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the assel is recognized to the
extent of the Group's continuing invelvement in the assel, In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guaraniee over the transferred assel, is measured al the lower of the ariginal
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial assets - Impairment

The Group recognizes an allowance for expecled credit fosses ("ECL") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss, ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash fliows due In accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset's original
effective interest rate.

£CLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, £ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default evenls that are possible within the next 12-
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initiat
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 80 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unfikely to receive the outstanding contractual amaunts in full before taking into account any credit enhancemants held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash fiows,

For trade debts, the Group applies a simplified approach in calcutating £CLs based on lifelime expected credit losses. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. The expected credil losses are recognized in the
s_ie&::ment of profit or loss, The impact of ECL on trade debts is disclosed in note 18.

i
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

For bank balances, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime expecled credil losses. The
Group reviews internal and external imformation available for each bank balance lo assess expected credit loss and the
likelihood to recelve the outstanding contractual amount. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss however, the impact of ECL on bank balances is immaterial,

Financial liahilities
Financial liabifities - inltial recognition
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial fiabitities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriale,

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and horrowings and payables, net of direcly
attributable transaction costs,

The Group's financial liabilities include long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up arrangements, creditors,
liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other liabilities,

Financial liabilities - subsequent measurement
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognilion, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amorlized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized In profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amaortization process,

Amorlized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income,

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up arrangements, creditors, liabilities
against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other iiabilities.

Financial Habilities - derecognition

A financiat liability is derecognized when the abligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is reated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss,

Employee henefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group operated a defined contributory approved Provident Fund Trust for all its emptoyees, Equal monthly contributions
are made both by the Group and employees at the rate of 6.25% of the basic salary to the Provident Fund Trust, Obligation for
contributions lo defined contribution plan is expensed as the related service is provided,

Contingent liabiiities
A contingent liabitity is disclosed when:

i} there is a possible obligation that arises from past evenls and whose existence will be confirmed only by the accurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group; or

i} there is present obligation thal arises from past events but it is not probable that an outffow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliabitity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) Is calculated hy dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares thal would be issued on
conversion of all difutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit and loss
atiributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group that would result from conversion of all dilutive petential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

"”-3Qs-i
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Government grant

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions shall be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on systematic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensale, are expensed. When the grant relates to an
asset, it Is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the relaled asset,

When a grant refated to non monelary asset is received, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts and
refeased to statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the pattern of consumption of the
benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual inslalments.

Mark-up bearing borrowings

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cosl representing the falr value of consideration received less
altributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, rmark-up bearing borrowings are stated at orlginal cost lass
subsequent repayments, while the difference between the original recognized amounts (as reduced by periodic payments) and
redemption value is recognized in the profit and loss account over the peried of borrowings on an effective rate basis. The
borrowing cost on qualifying assel is included in the cost of related assel.

Leng term investments
Invesiment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary companies are measured at cost as per the.requirements of 1AS-27 'Separate Financial Statements’.
However, at subsequent reporting dates, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of the investments and its recoverability
to determine whether there is an indication that such investments have suifered an impairment loss. If such indication exists
the carrying amounts of the investments are adjusted to the extent of impairment loss. Impafrment losses are recoghnized as an
expense in profit and loss account.

investments in equity instruments of assaciates

Assoclates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not contral, Investments in equity instruments of
associate is measured al cost less impairment, if any, in the Group's separate financial statements.
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022 2023 2022
{Number of shares) Rupees Rupees
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each allocated for
consideration paid in cash 1,500,000 1,500,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as bonus
shares 5,952,900 5,952,900 59,529,000 59,529,000
1,452,900 7,452,900 74,529,000 74,529,000

LSE Financial Services Limited, an associated undertaking holds 2,683,042 (2022: 2,683,042) ordinary shares comprising 36%
of the paid up share capital of the Holding Company.

Directors hold 4,024,568 (2022: 3,018,428) ordinary shares comprising 54% of totat paid up share capital of the Holding
Company.

Note 2023 2022

LONG-TERM FINANCE - SECURED Rupees Rupees
Bank AL Habib Limited 8.1 - -
Balance as at 01 July 10,065,933 29,628,170
Receipts during the year - -
Repayments during the year (10,065,933) (20,345,500)
Accrued markup - 783,263

- 10,065,933
Accrued markup shown as current liability - {783,263)
Less: Current portion of long-term finance - (9,282,670)

Balance as at 30 June

The Holding Company has obtained long term finance facility from Bank AL Habib Limited under State Bank of Pakistan
relinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries of workers and employees for the month of Aprit 2020 to June 2020, The
facility Is repayable in eight equal quarterly instalments, payable quarterly in arrears, commencing after a grace period of 9
months and it carries markup at the rate of 3% per annum. This facility is secured by way of first hypothecation charge over
book debts of the Holding Company for Rs. 65 million and furniture & fixtures of the Company for Rs. 10 million. Being a loan
betow market rate of interest, a portion of the loan has been treated as Government grant as described in Note 9.

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

This represents deferred grant recognized on loan received from Bank AL Habib Limited at below market interest rate under
SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries of Workers and Employees,

Balance as at 30 June -

Movement during the year is as follows: Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Balance as at 01 July 102,793 886,056
Amount recognized as deferred grant during the year (102,793) -
Amount recoghized as income during the year - {783,263)
- 102,793
Less: Current portion of deferred government grant - (102,793)

LEASE LIABILITY

The elfective interest rate used as the discounting factor {i.e. Incremental borrowing rate) is 22.96%. The amount of future
payments and the period during which they will become due are:

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Period ending 30 June
2022 - -
2023 - 1,478,049
2024 8,038,884 8,038,903
2025 8,641,797 -
16,680,681 15,516,952
Less: fulure finance charges (2,599,798) (1,236,513)
14,080,883 14,280,439
lfss: current maturity shown under current liabilities (5,924,140} {6,462,098)
'*G‘Pi 8,156,743 7,818,341
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Maximum lease term for the existing lease contracts is up to 4 years.

Minimum Lease Payments (MLP) and their Present Value (PV) are as follow:

MLP PV of MLP
{Rupees) {Rupaes)
Due not later than 1 year 8,038,903 6,426,869
Due fater than 1 year but not later than 5 years 8,641,797 5,769,350
16,680,700 12,196,219
Set out below are the carrying amounts of fease liabilities and the movement during the year:
Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Balances as at 01 July 14,280,439 19,561,848
Impact of reassessment of lease 3,997,039 -
Markup on lease liabilities 3,281,442 1,674,916
21,558,920 21,236,764
Less: Lease rentals paid {7,.478,037) (6,956,325)
Balance as at 30 June 14,080,883 14,280,439

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED

This represents ulilized balance of running finance facility obtained from Bank Al Habib Limited against fimit of Rs.30 miltion
(2022: Rs 30 million). This facility carries markup at the rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 150 basis points per annum (2022: 3
month Kibor plus 150 basis paints per annum), payable quarterly. This Is secured by way of first hypothecation charge of Rs.
85 million and Rs. 10 million on present and fulure current assets and furniture & fixtures of the Company respectively.

Note 2023 2022
CONTRACT LIABILITY Rupees Rupees
Advance from customers 12.1 30,984,020 28,527,016
Beferred revenue 12.2 76,047,605 68,455,411
107,031,625 97,982,427

This represents advance received from customers for future rating of entities,
This represents deferred revenue relating to services recognized over time.

Revenueg recognized in the reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the period
amounts to Rs. 62,75 million (2022: Rs. 59.19 miltion).

Note 2023 2022

TRADE AND CTHER PAYABLES Rupees Rupees
Remuneration and related cost payable 43,780,072 41,101,851
Infrastructure and related cost payables . 490,568 660,800
Administrative and related cost payable 6,537,016 3,137,429
Due to related parties 131 1,025,408 318,737
Sales tax payable 19,984,198 13,251,398

71,827,263 58,470,207
Due to related parties include
Tasdeeq Information Services Limited (an associate} 13.1.2 1,025,408 318,737

This represents nel payable to Tasdeeq Informatlon Services Limited which is to be adjusted against expense incurred on
behalf of the associated company.

ﬁ"ui(
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14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

141 Commitments

JS Bank Limited has issued performance guarantee on behalf of the Company in favour of Finance Department of
Government of Punjab amounting to Rs. 0.05 million {2022: Rs, 0.05 million).

14.2 Contingencies

14.2,1  The Commissioner Inland Revenue (the "CIR"} issued order dated 02-Sep-2021 under section 161{1) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 200t {the "Ordinance”) for the lax year 2014 and 2017 to remand back notice for
reassesment. The management expects a favourable outcome in this regard,

14.2.2  The Deputy Commissioner inland Revenue (the "DCIR"} issued order dated May 31, 2021 under section 122(1) of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the "Ordinance”) for the lax year 2015 whereby lax amounting to Rs. 10.7 million
on account of disallowance of expenses was levied. The Company preferred an appeal on June 18, 2021 before
Commissioner Inland Revenue {Appeals) [the "CIR{A)"), which is pending adjudication. The management expects a
favourable outcome in this regard.

14.2.3  The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the "DCIR") issued order dated February 22, 2019 under section
161(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 {the "Ordinance”} for the tax year 2016 whereby tax amounting to Rs,
2.2 milion for non-deduction of withholding tax was levied. The Company preferred an appeal before
Commissioner Infand Revenue (Appeals) fthe "CIR{A)"], which is decided against the Company by confirming the
tax liability of Rs. 0.59 million. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal on September 16, 2021 before the
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (the "ATIR"), which is pending adjudication, The management expects a
favourable outcome in this regard.

14.2.4  The Deputy Commissioner Intand Revenue (the "DCIR") issued show cause notice dated January 26, 2021 under
section 161 (1A} of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001 (“the Ordinance”) for the tax year 2018 for non-deduction of
withholding tax on expenses and purchases. In compliance to this notes, a reply by the Company has duly been
submitted dated February 17, 2021 which is still under process. The management expects a favourable outcome in
this regard.

14.2.5  The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the "DCIR") issued show cause notice dated January 27, 2027 under
section 161 (1A) of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001 ("the Ordinance”) for the tax year 2019 and tax year 2020 for
non-deduction of withhelding 1ax on expenses and purchases. No correspondence has been made in respect of
these notices. Since assessing officer was lransferred and notices from new officers are still not received. The
management expecls a favourable outcome in this regard.

14,26 The DCIR issued a notice under section 4-C for the year 2022 for recovery of super tax on July, 11 2023, Reply
has been submitted and the case is pending with tax officlals,

14.2.7  Appeal against an order has been filed with CIR (Appeals) to rectify mistake for the year 2017 under section 221
{1) . Demand of Rs 2.2 m has been rasied against the same.

/1428 The Beputy Commissioner Inland Revenue {the "DCIR") issued show cause notice dated February 19, 2022 under

section 161(1A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ({the "Ordinance”) for the tax year 2021 for non-deduction of

withhelding tax on expenses and purchases. In compliance to this notice, a reply has duly been submitted dated

March 30, 2022 which Is still under process. The management expects a favourable outcome in this regard.

14.2.9 The Assistant Commissioner Sind Revenue Board {the "ACSR"} issued show cause notice dated October 21, 2021
under section 3 & 8 of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act 2011 {the Act") for the tax period 2017,2018,2019 &
2020 for revenue difference in SRB sales tax returns and PACRA Audited Accounts for abovementioned periods
and sales tax amounting Rs. 38.02 million was levied. In compliance to this notice, the assessing officer passed
Jjudgement on dated July 02, 2022 and tax assessed by Rs. 831,949 and imposed penalty by Rs, 41,594. Against
such order an appeal is filed before the worthily Commissioner Appeals. The management expects a favourable
outcome in this regard.

“qut
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

.Owned

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment and computers

Vehleles

Swned
Furaiture and fixtures
Office equipment and computers

Vehicles

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

‘preciation charge is atflocated as follows:

Infrastructurs cost
i

\
1

2023
COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Additions Book value
Asat . . Cost Asat For . As at 30 June
01 July 2022 d“?:g{‘he PISPOSAS  ah june 2023 01 July2022  theyear Dispasals 23 a;ﬁg;"“e Rate
-------------------- Rupees—--.--.-.......--.....---....H.._..-..-...-.....Rupees...-.......-........-....... %
11,162,120 9,550,130 4,625,086 22,087,164 9,602,126 2,910,696 4,555,112 1,957,710 14,129,454 10-3333
17,574,984 1.023,829 7.532,829 12,115,984 13,208,411 2,652,970 7,135,597 8,724,784 8,391,200 10-25
4,292,209 - 42,009 4,250,200 1,233,679 540,012 39,861 1,733,829 2,516,371 20
39,029,313 16,623,959 12,199,924 43,453,348 24,044,216 6,103,678 11,731,570 18,416,323 25,037,025
2022
COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
- Cost/
As at dﬁ?i‘:uoﬂ:: Disposals Revalued Asat for Disposats As 2130 Juna E!oai)l;ga}u:ss Rata
0t Juty 2021 egr 3 amount 99 July 2021 the year P 2022 ' 02;‘
¥ 30 June 2022
..................... e i - U %
14,209,631 2,852,489 . 11.162,120 7,971,338 1,630,788 9,602,126 7,559,994 10-3333
16,358,579 951,150 734,745 17,574,984 11,276,061 2,564,846 632,496 13,208,411 4,366,573 190.28
2,389,409 4,149,800 2,251,000 4,292,209 1505808 1,345,286 1517,516 1,233,679 3,058,530 20
33,067,619 8,953,439 2,991,745 39,025,313 20,753,308 5,540,920 4.250,012 24,044,216 14,985,097
Note 2023 2022
Rupess Rupees
29 5,103,678 5,540,920
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Windows and MS office software
Rating Scftware

Accounting software

Windows and MS alfice software

Accounting software

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

16,1 Amortization charge has been aliocated as follows:

4
L

Wrastructure cost

TR
4

2023
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION Met baok
As at Additions Disposais Asat As at As at vzlue as at
01 July during the during the 30 June 01 July For the year Disposals 30 June 30 June
2022 year year 2023 2022 2023 2023 Rate
.................. Rupges--------cranuiiao.. B R 11 [+ - L R L L E T T %
343,000 - . 343,000 343,000 . - 343,000 - 33.33
- 4,491,006 4,491,006 - 748,651 748,651 3,142,355 33.33
1,031,074 - - 1,031,074 897,942 76,044 . 973,985 57,088 3333
1,374,074 4,491,006 - 5,865,080 1,240,942 B24,695 - 2.065,637 3,799,443
2022
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION Net book
As at Addidens Disposals As at As at As at value 85 at
01 July during the duting the 30 June 01 July For the year Disposals 30 June 30 Jure
2021 year - yeat 2022 2022 2023 2023 Rate
................... RUPEES-'--‘-----""-----' --......---.--...-..Rupces-.......-........... %
343,000 - - 343,600 343,000 v - 343,000 - 33.33
1,031,074 . . 1.031,074 802,895 95,047 - 897,942 133,132 3333
1,374,074 - - 1,374,074 1,145,895 95047 - 1,240,942 133,132
Note 2023 2022
Rugees Rupees
29 824,695 95,047
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17.1

18

8.1

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET
Balances as at 01 July
Impact of reassessment of lease

Less: depreciation

Balance as at 30 June

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
11,913,580 17,870,370

3,997,039 -
{5,303,540) {5,956,790)
16,607,079 11,913,680

These include 1 leasehold building having 2 floors situated al Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, Garden Town, Lahore.

Cost of investment

Tasdeeq Infermation Services Limited

10,000,000 (2022: 10,000,000) fully paid shares of Rs. 10 each

Share of loss

As at 01 July
Share of loss for the year
Share of other comprehensive (loss) / incame

As at 30 June

Net investment as at 30 June

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
100,000,000 100,000,600
(31,034,047) {30,715,148)
{3.066,314) (177,257}
(55,225) (141,641

{34,155,586)

(31,024,047)

65,844,414

68,965,953

The Hofding Company owns 10 million (2022: 10 million) fully paid shares al the rate of Rs, 10 each resulting in total 20%
equity investment in Tasdeeq Information Services Limited and accordingly has classified this interest as investment in
associate. The registered office of Tasdeeq Information Services Limited is situated at Building 8, Commerciat Area, Phase V,
DHA, Lahore, Pakistan. The investment has been made in accordance with the requirements under Companies Act 2017,

Summarized financiat information in respect of Tasdeeq Information Services Limited, an associaled company, on the basis of

un-audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 are set out below:

Non current assets
Current assets

Non current liabilitles
Current liabilities

Net assets - 100%

Less: Share deposit money

Percentage ownership interest

Group's share of net assels representing carrying amount of

interest in associated company

Revenue from contracts with customers-net
Loss after taxation for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive toss for the year from conlinuing operations

”*\151
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2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
509,768,761 430,886,516
73,963,620 94,073,161
(34,760,687) (29,609,701}
(223,725,791 (150,520,210}
325,245,903 344,829,766
325,245,803 344,829,766
20% 20%
65,049,181 68,965,953
205,991,689 188,936,288
(15,331,572) (886,287)
{276,125) (708,206)
(3,066,314) (318,899)
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DEFERRED TAXATION

“, Deductible temporary difference

Accelerated tax depreciation/
Amortization alowances

Provision for expected credit losses
Payable to provident fund
Lease liabilities - net

Workers weifare fund

Deductible tenporary diference

Accelerated tax depreciation {
Amortization aliowances

Provision for expected credit losses
Payable to provident fund

Lease liabitiies - net
i
%

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LINITED

2023

Opening balance

{Charge) / credit to
profit or loss

Creditto other

Lo Clesing balance
comprehensive income

..................... Rupees....._......---.......

425,257 1,246,632 1,671,889
2,006,834 716,141 - 2,722,975
94,700 (84,700) - -

686,389 321,014 1,007,403
1,012,114 1,012,114

3,213,180 3,201,201 6,414,381

2022
Opening balance {Charge) / credit 1o prolit Credit 10 other Cfosing halance
or loss comprehensive income
..................... Rupees.........---.....__..

1,043,556 (618,299) - 425,257
1,430,345 576,489 2,006,834
124,810 {30,110} . 94,700
487,782 198,607 - 686,389
3,086,493 126,687 - 3,213,180
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20.1

21

.22

22.1
22,2

22.3

23

23.1

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Note 2023 2022

TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED Rupees Rupees
Trade debts 59,615,336 86,723,826
Receivable fram LRA 1.2 33,603,884 -
Less: Provision for expected credit loss 20.1 (9,466,534) (6,997,082)

83,752,686 79,726,744
The movement in provision for expected credit loss is as follows:
Balance as at 01 July 6,897,082 4,959,999
Charge for the year 2,469,452 4,753,087
Trade debts written-off - (2,716,004)

2,469,452 2,037,083

Balance as at 30 June 9,466,534 6,997,082

CONTRACT ASSET

This includes cost of provisioning of services by the Company to the cuslomers, but right to receive payments against such goods

and services has not yel been established.

Note 2023 2022
RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES Rupees Rupees
Tasdeeq Information Services Limited-Share deposit money 12,733,007 12,733,007
Tasdeeq Information Services Limited-Accrued Markup 1,875,846 1,113,690
TenX (Private} Limited - Reimbursement 1.066,531 327,099
22.2 156,675,384 14,173,796
This relates to an amourit receivable on account of common expendilures incurred.
The maximuim aggregate amount oulstanding from related parties at any time during the year was:
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Tasdeeq Information Services Limited 14,608,853 13,846,697
TenX (Private} Limited 1,066,531 327,099
Age analysis of receivable from related parties, past due but not impaired is as follows:
Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
0 to 6 months 2,942,317 14,173,796
6 to 12 months - -
Above 12 months 12,733,007 -
15,675,384 14,173,796
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE-UNSECURED
Loan to Aequilas Information Services Limited 231 30,000,000 30,000,000
Add : Related accrued mark-up 1,875,846 1,113,680
31,875,846 31,113,690
Less: Accrued mark-up {1,875,846) {1,113,690)
30,000,000 30,000,000
Balance as at 01 July 30,000,000 -
Payments during the year - 30,000,000
Shares issued - -
Balance as at 30 June 30,000,000 30,000,000

This represents loan given to Tasdeeq Information Services Limited {TISL) for the purpose of bridging TISL's cash shortfalt till
injection of new equity. The lean is renewed an 18th January 2023, The tenure of the loan will be one year from the date of
disbursement. The current markup rate is three month KIBOR plus 300 bps. As per the agreement the markup rate will be three
month KIBOR plus 300 bps or at the rate paid by Tasdeeq Information Services Limited to its other sponsor shareholder,

whichever is higher, Any delay in payment would yield a service charge of 1% per month.

1
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25

25.1

26

26.1

27

271

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Note 2023 2022
ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS Rupees Rupees
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances - unsecured, considered good
- o employees 486,500 6,286,168
- to suppliers 805,000 481,257
1,291,500 6,767,425
Sales tax receivable 13,714,833 7,858,882
Prepayments 2,550,631 2,450,651
Others - 166,755
17,556,964 17,243,713
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
lnvestment in Government securities 251 44,202,019 80,727,392

This relates lo invesmtent in treasury bills by the Company. Thay carry yield ranging from 15.57% o 21.99% (2022 10.2% to
12.4%) per annum, These Treasury bills have maturity period of 3 months. These Govarnment securities have an aggregate face

value of Rs. 45.5 million (2022: 62 million)

Note 2023 2022
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees
Lacal currency - deposits and saving accounts 26.1 84,256,046 34,122,718
These carries mark up ranging from 13% to 19.5% {2022: 6.5% to 13%) per annum.
Note 2023 2022
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET Rupees Rupees
Income from rating business
- domestic 416,463,776 352,052,187
- foreign 1,710,685 1,610,740
418,174,461 353,662,927
Income from non rating business
- domestic - 13,866,805
- foreign 43,458,533 8,997,465
43,458,533 22,864,270
Less: Provincial Sales tax (52,336,404) (51,457,952)
210 409,296,590 325,069,245

Disaggregation of Fees income

in the following table fees income from contracts with customers is disaggregated primarily by types of rating and liming of

revenue recognition.

Type of rating services

Entity rating

instrument rating

Fund rating

Type of Non rating services
Consultancy services

Credit Risk Assessment Training
Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue recognized al a point in time
Revenue recognized over - ime

Note 2023 2022

Rupees Rupees
254,509,563 216,864,810
78,678,439 63,650,155
25,970,618 23,228,409
359,158,620 303,743,374
43,458,533 12,889,146
6,679,437 8,436,725
409,298,590 325,069,245
328,773,159 272,516,638
80,523,431 52,552,607
409,296,590 325,069,245

- 5@?1
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28.1

29

30

30.1

31

32

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

REMUNERATION COST

Staff salaries & other benefits 28.1 181,911,836 151,259,864

Retired employees benefits 1,976,507 1,041,168

External rating commiltee member fee 7,491,664 6,850,000

Advisory/Consultancy fee 1,774,642 1,660,313
193,154,648 160.811.345

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 5.65 million (2022: Rs, 4.25 million) in respect of contribution ta provident fund,

Note 2023 2022
INFRASTRUCTURE COST Rupees Rupees
Rent, rates and taxes 3,184,806 2,734,233

Utilities 4,925,582 3,390,977
Technology & related expenses 3,759,694 2,183,563
Repair & Maintenance 2,024,956 4,328,754
Depreciation on property and equipment 6,103,678 6,540,920
Amortization on intangible assets 824,695 95,047
Depreciation on right of use asset 5,303,540 5,956,790
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 283,342 -
Others 2,097,218 1,561,690

28,507,511 25,791,974
ADMINISTRATIVE COST -

Directors meeting expenses 301 5,458,900 3,616,774
Legal & professional charges 1,821,872 1,763,187
Entertainment and related expenses 6,694,438 3,836,297
Travelling, food and accommaodalion 3,421,579 3,050,835
Auditor's remuneration 1,450,001 900,000
Tax advisory, consuitancy & fees 987,979 1,031,499
Worker welfare fund 3,480,049 -
Communicalion and related expenses 1,375,858 807,211
Promotional expenses 492,246 1,739,164
Others 1,752,898 914,519
26,945 818 17,749,485

This relates to the meeting fee paid to Directors of the Holding Company for attending the meelings held during the year,

2023 2022
OTHER INCOME Rupees Rupees
Income from financial assets:
Mark-up based income from conventional banks:
Mark-up on savings accounls 2,100,408 5,094,869
Unwinding of Government grant 102,783 783,263
Mark-up on loan given to associate 6,270,081 1,808,452
Profit on short term investment 8,818,490 2,034,455
17,291,752 9,821,040
Income from non-financial assets:
Gain on disposal of fixed assets - 2,219,268
Reimbursement from clients 597,330 4,730,010
Miscellaneous income 128,587 118,954
125,917 7,069,231
18,017,669 16,880,271
FINANCE COST
Mark-up on long term borrowings 444 877 1,344,549
Finance cost on lease liability 3,277,238 1,674,916
Bank charges 43,724 73,182
3,765,839 3,092,647

"'ﬂfﬁ
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33.1

34

34.1

34.2

TAXATION

Current tax
Current year
Prior year

Deferred tax

Reconciliation between accounting profit and taxation

Profit before taxation

Tax at applicable rate of 29% (2022; 29%)
Tax effect of deductions
Deferred taxation impact

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit after tax

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
cutstanding during the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

49,033,653 37,501,220
49,033,653 37,501,220
(3,201,201) (126,687)
45,837,457 37,374,534
169,404,677 129,583,721
49,127,356 37,579,279
{1,108,535) (78,058}
(2,186,369) (126,687)
45,832,453 37,374,534
123,572,225 92.209,187
7,452,900 7,452,900
16.58 12.37

Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the profit atiributable to equity holders of the Company by weighted

average number of ordinary shares.

"ﬂﬁi
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There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.




THE PAKISTAN CREDNT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

35  REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these unconsolidated financial staternents for the year for remuneration, Including certain benefits to the Chief Executive, Directors and
cther Executives of the Company are as follows:

Chief Executive Non - Executive directors Executives

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

.................................................... RUPBOS sersrmrmmomomemme e s o ortatas i e mmenee e eeeeeaan
Managerial remuneration 24,000,000 22,956,861 - - 77,104,378 50,634,001
Contribution to provident lund 1.032,145 1,043,139 - - 3,652,108 2,578,032
Bonus 35.1 12,325,266 8,000,000 - i . 15,932,586 11,207,994
Meeting fee . - 5,125,000 3,616,774 -
Relmbursable expenses - 208,130 - - 665,822 515,689
Totat 37,357.411 32,208,130 5,125,000 3,616,774 97,954,892 64,935,716
Numbers 1 1 6 6 25 15

331 This bonus Is paid to Ex. CEO Mr. Shahzad Saleem.

”jlz
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

-Transactions and balances with related parties 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

Balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:

Associated company (20% owned)

Tasdeeq Information Services Limited
Investment in associate during the year -

Amount an account of loan during the year - -

Expense paid on behalf of related party during the year 1,393,788 1,266,500
Expenses paid by related party on behaif of Company during the year 2,100,459 1,595,237
Mark-up on loan charged to related party during the year 6,270,061 1,908,452
Markup paid by related party during the year 4,394,215 794,762
Payable to related parly - unsecured (1,025,408) {794,953)

Associated company (Comimen Directorship)

TenX (Private) Limited

Expense paid on behalf of related party during the year 1,395,573 1,266,500

Post employment benefit plans / Other related parties

On account of:

Contributions to Provident Fund Trust 5,654,917 4,254,802

Year end payable balance

Provident fund 1,511,269 793,336

Directors
i Muhammad Adnan Afaq (10% equity held)

On account of:

Dividend paid 8,198,190 8,198,190

Meeting fee - 40,000
Mr. Shahzad Saleem, Ex CEO

On account of;

Remuneration 14,000,000 22,956,861
Bonus 12,325,266 8,000,000

Year end payable balance

Salary payable 2,000,000

“‘u{f
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Mr. Usman Haider, CEO 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

On account of;

Remuneration 10,000,000 -
Bonus - N
Year end payable balance

Salary payable . -

Mumtaz Hussaln Syed (27% equity heid) Rupees Rupees
On account of:

Dividend paid 24,147,360 22,135,080

Meeting fee 700,000 460,000

Sardar Ali Watto (13.5% equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid 12,073,680 11,067,551

Meeting Fee 900,000 615,000

Usman Haider (13.5% Equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid 12,073,680 11,067,540

Meeting Fee - .

Other Directors {0.00930% ecjuity held)
On account of:
Dividend paid 72 77

Meeting fee 2,975,000 2,270,000

Sharg holders holding more than 20% eauity:

Lahore Stock Exchange (36% Fquity held)

On account of:

Dividend paid 32,196,504 29,513,462
Key Management Personnel (other than directors)

Mr. Shahzad Saleem, CEO

On account of:

Remuqergtion 14,000,000 22,956,861
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

Credit Risk

Credil risk s the risk which arises with the possibility that one parly to a financial instrument will faif to discharge its obligalion
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to conlrol credit risk by monitoring credit exposures,
limiting transactions with specific counterparlies and conlinually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counlerparties are engaged in similar business aclivities or have similar
economic features thal would cause their ability to meel contractual obligalions to be simifarly alfected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentralions of credit risk indicate the refalive sensilivity of the Company's performance to
developments affecting a particular indusiry.

The Company Is exposed lo credil risk on lrade debls, deposils, other receivables and bank balances. The Company seeks to
minimize the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities
where applicable. The maximum exposure lo credit risk at the reporting date Is:

Carrying Values

Note 2023 2022
{Rupees) (Rupees)
Trade debis - unsecured 20 83,752,686 79,726,744
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 24 17,556,964 17,243,713
Advance income tax - net 40,267,106 34,603,221
Cash and bank balances 26 84,256,046 34,122,718

225,832,802 165,696,396

Trade debts

Analysis of trade debts that are neither past due nor impaired and thal are past due bul not impaired Is described in Note 20

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expecled credit losses, The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments wilh similar loss pallerns {l.e., by
geographical region, producl type, customer Lype and raling). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted oulcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information (hat is available al the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk alt the reporting date is tihe carrying
value of each class of financial assels. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The letters of credil and other forms of
credit insurance are considered integral part of irade receivabtes and considered in the calculation of impairment.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Company's trade debts using a provision maieix;

0-90 days 91-180 days  181-270days Over 271 days 365 and above Total
As at 30 June 2023
Expected credit loss rate - - 100% .
Estimated total
gross carrying
amount at default 74,664,998 11,680,287 4,414,483 - 2,469,452 93,219,220
Expected credit loss - - - - 2,469,452 2,469,452
0-80 days 91-180 days  181-270 days Over 271 days 365 and above Total
As at 30 June 2022
Expected credit loss rate 0.9% 30.4% -
Estimated olal
gross carrying
amount at default 65,696,146 20,950,714 - - - 86,646,860
Expected credit loss 584,079 6,362,038 - - - 6,956,117

—xg
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Rating Rating Agency 2023 2022
37.1.2 Bank balances Short Term Long Term {Rupees} {Rupees)
Bank AL Habib Al+ AAA PACRA 84,256,046 34,122,718
84,256,046 34,122,718

37.2

37.3

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be ahle to mee! its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company applies
prudent risk management poficies by malintaining sulficient cash and bank batances and by keeping commitled credit linas. The
table below summarizes the malturity profile of the Company's financial liabililies at the following reporting dates:

Year ended Lessthan 3 3to12
30 June 2023 On demand months months 1to 5 years > b years Total
------------------------------------------------ AMOUNE i RUPBES--ressmmme e
Short term - - - - -
borrowing-
Contract liability . 107,031,625 - - - 107,031,625

Current portion of - - - - - .
long term finance

Current pozlion of B - 5,924,140 8,156,743 - 14,080,883

tease liabilities

Accrued mark-up 30,034 - - - . 30,034

Trade and other payable: 71,827,263 - - - - 71,827,263
11,857,297 107,031,625 5,924,140 8,156,743 - 192,969,805

Year ended Less than 3 3012
30 June 2022 On demand months months 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
........................................................ Amount in Rupees-..-.--........-..-.-..-....-.-......._.-..-......-.--.-.

Short term - - - - - -

borrowing-

Contract liabiity - 59,198,767 - - - 59,198,767

Current portion of 22,260,458 - - - - 22,260,458

leng term finance

Current porlion of - - 5,281,409 14,280,439 - 19,561,848

fease liabilities

Accrued mark-up 268,263 - . - - 268,363

Trade and other payable: 46,189,685 - - - - 46,189,685
68,718,506 59,198,767 5,281,409 14,280,439 - 147,479,121

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk thal fair value or future cash flows of a financlal Instrument will fluctuate due lo changes in market
interest rate.

The Company's exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the fund oblained from parent
combany with floating interest rates.

‘unt

{Increase) ! decrease Effect on profit before tax
in basis points 2023 2022
(Rupees) {Rupees)
+100 8,425,605 3,412,272
-100 (8,425,605) (3.412,272)
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

The carrying value of all financial assets and liablities reflected in the financiat staterments approximate their fair value, Fair value
is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date,

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

2023
Long term Lease Dividend Total
finances liabilities payable
------------ Rupees - - - ----..
Balance as at 01 July 9,385,463 14,280,439 23,665,902
Cashflows
Long term loans repaid net of repayment {9,385,463) - {9,385,463)
Lease liabilities - net - {7.478,037) (7,478,037}
Dividend declared - - 89,434,800 89,434,800
Dividend paid - (89,434,800) (89,434,800)
Balance as at 30 June - 6,802,402 - 6,802,402
2022
Long term Lease Dividend Total
finances liabililies payable
------------ Rupees - --------.

Balance as at 01 July 28,198,730 19,561,848 47,761,578
Lashiflows
Long term loans obtained net of repaynment (18,814,267} - - (18.814,267)
Lease liabilities - net (5.281,408) - (5,281,409)
Dividend dectared 81,981,900 81,981,900
Dividend paid - {81,981,900) {81,981,900)
Balance as at 30 Jupe 9,385,463 14,280,439 - 23,665,802

Capital risk management

The Board's policy is lo maintain an efficient capital base so as lo maintain Investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain the fulure development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed, which the
Company defines as operating income divided by \otal capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the lavel of
dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company's objeclives when managing capital are:

® lo safeguard the enlily's ability to conlinue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

{ii) lo provide an adequate relurn to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the contexl of economic conditions and Lhe risk characteristics of the underlying

assels. In order lo maintain or adjust the capital struclure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, or selt assets 1o reduce debt.

Neither there were any changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year nor the Company Is subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

—’Qr £

Page 34 of 35




40

41

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30 are as follows:

2023 2022

Average number of employees during the year 85 75
Number of employees as at 30 June .9 80

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue on by the Board of Directors of the Grgquo.
i

7
Chief Executive Director
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